NOTICE OF 30-DAY PERIOD FOR PUBLIC COMMENT

Starting in May 2021 and ending in June 2021.

March Air Reserve Base has revised its Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan (INRMP).

The INRMP, Environmental Assessment, and draft Finding of No Significant Impact are available for 30 days of public review and comment.

Comments should be sent by mail to March Air Reserve Base, Attention: Chris Wagner, 452 MSG/CEV, 610 Meyer Drive, Building 2403, March ARB, CA 92518, or by email at <u>christhild.wagner@us.af.mil</u>.

Regional Map



Vicinity Map



Jurisdictional Delineation Map



Legend



Project Boundary Corps/RWQCB Non-Wetland Waters CDFW Unvegetated Streambed



1 inch = 300 feet

Aerial Photo: ESRI Basemaps Reference Elevation Datum: State Plane 6 NAD 83 Map Prepared by: C. Lukos, GLA Date Prepared: April 17, 2015

MORENO VALLEY LOGISTICS **CENTER PROJECT**

Jurisdictional Delineation Map

GLENN LUKOS ASSOCIATES



Site Photographs



GLENN LUKOS ASSOCIATES

Exhibit 4

Photograph 1: Photograph depicting the Perris Valley Storm Drain.



Photograph 2: Photograph depicting the Perris Valley Storm Drain.



Photograph 3: Photograph depicting the Project site. Note the lack of jurisdictional waters on site.



Photograph 4: Photograph depicting the Project site. Note the lack of jurisdictional waters on site.

Soils Map



Legend

Project Boundary
EnA - Exeter sandy loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes
EpA - Exeter sandy loam, deep, 0 to 2 percent slopes
EyB -Exeter very fine sandy loam, deep, 0 to 5 percent slopes
GyA - Greenfield sandy loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes
HcA - Hanford coarse sandy loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes



Aerial Photo: ESRI Basemaps Reference Elevation Datum: State Plane 6 NAD 83 Map Prepared by: C. Lukos, GLA Date Prepared: April 17, 2015

MORENO VALLEY LOGISTICS **CENTER PROJECT**

Soils Map

GLENN LUKOS ASSOCIATES



Appendix A

Impact Analysis Memorandum

MEMORANDUM

GLENN LUKOS ASSOCIATES



Regulatory Services

PROJECT NUMBER:	0849-0016more
TO:	Ms. Tracy Zinn Principal T&B Planning, Inc. 17542 East 17th Street, Suite 100 Tustin, California 92780
FROM:	Martin Rasnick
DATE:	May 12, 2015
SUBJECT:	Moreno Valley Logistics Center Project Study Area; Located in the City of Moreno Valley; Riverside County, California: Jurisdictional Delineation Impact Analysis.

Ms. Zinn:

This memorandum summarizes Glenn Lukos Associates' (GLA) impact analysis of U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), and Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control Board (Regional Board) jurisdiction for the Moreno Valley Logistics Center Project Study Area (Study Area) located in the City of Moreno Valley; Riverside County, California. The Study Area encompasses approximately 89.4 acres of property on which the Moreno Valley Logistics Center is proposed (the "Project site") and a segment of the off site Perris Valley Storm Drain (PVSD) that bifurcates the property. An impact analysis was conducted for the Project based upon files received from T& B Planning and the Project team. Impacts to each regulatory jurisdiction are described below.

1. Impacts to Corps and Regional Board Jurisdiction

Potential Corps and Regional Board jurisdiction associated with the Study Area totals 8.55 acres, none of which consists of jurisdictional wetlands, and is limited to the off site Perris Valley Storm Drain (PVSD) as the on site Project does not contain Corps or Regional Board jurisdiction. A total of 3,990 linear feet of streambed is present. The Project, as proposed, would permanently impact 0.002 acre of Corps and Regional Board jurisdiction, none of which consists of jurisdictional wetlands, off site within the PVSD. A total of 52 linear feet of streambed will be permanently impacted. The Project would temporarily impact 0.09 acre of Corps and Regional Board jurisdiction none of which consists of site within the PVSD. A total of 196 linear feet of streambed will be temporarily disturbed.

Lake Forest

California 92630-8300 Facsimile: (949) 837-5834 Ms. Tracy Zinn T&B Planning May 12, 2015 Page 2

> Table One below depicts permanent impacts to Corps and Regional Board jurisdiction. Table Two below depicts temporary impacts to Corps and Regional Board jurisdiction. A graphic depicting permanent and temporary impact to Corps and Regional Board jurisdiction is attached as Exhibit 1A.

Table One.	Permanent Impacts to	Corps and Regional	Board Jurisdiction
------------	----------------------	---------------------------	---------------------------

Drainage Features	Permanent Impacts to Corps Non-Wetland Waters (Acres)	Permanent Impacts to Corps Wetland Waters (Acres)	Total Permanent Impacts to Corps Jurisdiction (Acres)	Total Permanent Linear-Foot Impacts (Feet)
Perris Valley Storm Drain	0.002	0	0.002	52
Total(s)	0.002	0	0.002	52

Table Two. Temporary Impacts to Corps and Regional Board Jurisdiction

Drainage Features	Temporary Impacts to Corps Non-Wetland Waters (Acres)	Temporary Impacts to Corps Wetland Waters (Acres)	Total Temporary Impacts to Corps Jurisdiction (Acres)	Total Temporary Linear-Foot Impacts (Feet)
Perris Valley Storm Drain	0.09	0	0.09	196
Total(s)	0.09	0	0.09	196

2. Impacts to CDFW Jurisdiction

Potential CDFW jurisdiction associated with the Study Area totals 11.97 acres, none of which consist of vegetated riparian habitat, and is limited to the off site PVSD as the on site Project does not contain CDFW jurisdiction. A total of 3,990 linear feet of streambed is present. The Project, as proposed, would permanently impact 0.02 acre of CDFW jurisdiction off site, none of which consists of vegetated riparian habitat. A total of 66 linear feet of streambed will be permanently impacted. The Project would temporarily impact 0.18 acre of CDFW jurisdiction, none of which consists of vegetated riparian habitat. A total of 203 linear feet of streambed will be temporarily disturbed. Table Three below depicts permanent impacts to CDFW jurisdiction and Table Four

Ms. Tracy Zinn T&B Planning May 12, 2015 Page 3

depicts temporary impacts to CDFW jurisdiction. A graphic depicting permanent and temporary impact to CDFW jurisdiction is attached as Exhibit 1B.

Drainage Features	Permanent Impacts to CDFW Unvegetated Streambed (Acres)	Permanent Impacts to CDFW Vegetated Riparian Habitat (Acres)	Total Permanent Impacts to CDFW Jurisdiction (Acres)	Total Permanent Linear-Foot Impacts (Feet)
Perris Valley Storm Drain	0.02	0	0.02	66
Total(s)	0.02	0	0.02	66

Table Three. Permanent Impacts to CDFW Jurisdiction

Drainage Features	Temporary Impacts to CDFW Unvegetated Streambed (Acres)	Temporary Impacts to CDFW Vegetated Riparian Habitat (Acres)	Total Temporary Impacts to CDFW Jurisdiction (Acres)	Total Temporary Linear-Foot Impacts (Feet)
Perris Valley Storm Drain	0.18	0	0.18	203
Total(s)	0.18	0	0.18	203

The impacts identified above would require a Corps Section 404 Permit under the Corps' Nationwide Permit Program, a Section 401 Water Quality Certification from the Regional Board, and a Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Agreement from the CDFW.

If you have any questions regarding this memorandum, please call me at (949) 837-0404, Ext. 20. Thank you.

s: 0849-16_impactmemo.doc



Legend



Project Boundary

Offsite Permanent Impact

Offsite Temporary Impact

Corps/RWQCB Non-Wetland Waters



1 inch = 300 feet

Aerial Photo: ESRI Basemaps Reference Elevation Datum: State Plane 6 NAD 83 Map Prepared by: C. Lukos, GLA Date Prepared: April 17, 2015



Corps/RWQCB Jurisdictional Delineation Impact Map

GLENN LUKOS ASSOCIATES





Legend



Project Boundary

- Offsite Permanent Impact
- Offsite Temporary Impact
- CDFW Unvegetated Streambed



1 inch = 300 feet

Aerial Photo: ESRI Basemaps Reference Elevation Datum: State Plane 6 NAD 83 Map Prepared by: C. Lukos, GLA Date Prepared: April 17, 2015



CDFW Jurisdictional Delineation Impact Map

GLENN LUKOS ASSOCIATES



APPENDIX E:

PLANT SPECIES OBSERVED ON MARCH ARB

This page is intentionally left blank.

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Abelia ×grandiflora*	Glossy abelia
Acacia spp.*	Ornamental acacia
Acmispon americanus	Spanish lotus
Acmispon argophyllus	Silver bird's foot trefoil
Acmispon glaber	Deerweed
Acmispon micranthus	Small-flowered lotus
Acmispon strigosus	Strigose lotus
Albizia julibrissin*	Silktree mimosa
Alnus cordata*	Italian alder
Alyssum alyssoides*	Pale madwort
Amaranthus albus*	Pigweed amaranth
Ambrosia confertiflora	Weakleaf bur ragweed
Ambrosia psilostachya	Western ragweed
Amsinckia intermedia	Common fiddleneck
Amsinckia menziesii	Menzies' fiddleneck
Arecaceae spp.	Palm
Artemisia californica	California sagebrush
Arundo donax*	Giant reed
Astragalus didymocarpus var. didymocarpus	Dwarf white milk vetch
Astragalus pomonensis	Pomona locoweed
Astragalus trichopodus var. trichopodus	Santa Barbara milk vetch
Atriplex lentiformis	Big saltbush
Atriplex semibaccata*	Australian saltbush
Avena fatua*	Wild oats
Avena barbata*	Slender oats
Avena sativa*	Common oat
Baccharis salicifolia	Mule fat
Bellis perennis*	English daisy
Bougainvillea spectabilis*	Great bougainvillea
Brachychiton populneus*	Bottle tree
Brassica nigra*	Black mustard
Brassica rapa*	Field mustard

Appendix E: Plant Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Bromus diandrus*	Ripgut grass
Bromus hordeaceus*	Soft chess
Bromus rubens*	Red brome
Bromus tectorum*	Cheat grass
Calandrinia ciliata	Redmaids
Callistemon citrinus*	Crimson bottlebrush
Callitriche marginata	Winged water-starwort
Calystegia macrostegia	Southern California morning-glory
Camissoniopsis bistorta	Southern suncup
Capsella bursa-pastoris*	Shepherd's purse
Carex eragrostis	Umbrella sedge
Castilleja exserta	Purple owl's-clover
Catalpa bignonioides*	Southern catalpa
Cedrus deodara*	Deodar cedar
Cenchrus ciliaris*	Buffelgrass
Centaurea melitensis*	Tocalote
Centaurea solstitialis*	Yellow star thistle
Centromadia pungens ssp. pungens	Common tarweed
Ceratonia siliqua*	Carob
Chenopodium album*	Goosefoot
Chenopodium murale*	Nettle-leaved goosefoot
Chloris paniculata*	Windmill grass
Chorizanthe polygonoides var. longispina	Knotweed spineflower
Cirsium vulgare*	Bull thistle
Cistanthe monandra	Sand cress
Cistus x purpureus*	Purple rockrose
Convolvulus arvensis*	Field bindweed
Conyza canadensis	Horseweed
Conyza bonariensis*	Little horseweed
Corethrogyne filaginifolia	Sandaster
Cortaderia atacamensis*	Pampas grass
Cotoneaster lacteus*	Milkflower cotoneaster

Appendix E: Plant Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Cotula australis*	Australian waterbuttons
Crassula connata (=C. erecta)	Sand pygmy weed
Croton californicus	California croton
Cryptantha barbigera	Bearded cryptantha
Cryptantha intermedia	Common forget-me-not
Cucurbita foetidissima	Calabazilla
Cucurbita palmata	Coyote melon
Cylindropuntia acanthocarpa	Buckhorn cholla
Cylindropuntia californica var. parkeri	Valley cholla
Cynodon dactylon*	Bermuda grass
Cyperus eragrostis	Tall umbrella-sedge
Cyperus parishii	Parish's flatsedge
Datura discolor	Desert thorn-apple
Datura stramonium	Jimson weed
Datura wrightii	Sacred datura
Deinandra fasciculata	Slender tarplant
Deinandra kelloggii	Kellogg's tarplant
Deinandra paniculata	San Diego tarplant
Delphinium parryi ssp. parryi	Blue larkspur
Deschampsia danthonioides	Annual hair grass
Dichelostemma capitatum	Blue dicks
Dietes irioides*	Fortnight lily
Diplacus aurantiacus	Sticky monkeyflower
Dodonaea viscosa*	Florida hopbush
Echinochloa crus-galli*	Common barnyard
Eleocharis macrostachya	Creeping spikerush
Eleusine indica*	Goose grass
Encelia californica	California brittlebush
Encelia farinosa	Brittlebush
Epilobium densiflorum	Spike primrose
Eremocarpus setigerus	Dove weed
Ericameria palmeri var. pachylepis	Palmer's goldenbush

Appendix E: Plant Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Eriogonum fasciculatum	California buckwheat
Eriogonum gracile	Slender buckwheat
Erodium botrys*	Long-beaked filaree
Erodium brachycarpum*	Foothill filaree
Erodium cicutarium*	Red-stemmed filaree
Erodium moschatum*	White-Stemmed filaree
Eruca vesicaria ssp. sativa*	Rocketsalad
Erysimum cheiranthoides*	Wormseed wallflower
Erythranthe guttata	Seep monkeyflower
Eschscholzia californica	California poppy
Eucalyptus globulus*	Blue gum
Eucalyptus polyanthemos*	Redbox
Euphorbia albomarginata	Rattlesnake weed
Euphorbia maculata*	Spotted sandmat
Euphorbia maculata*	Spotted spurge
Euphorbia nutans*	Eyebane
Festuca spp.*	Fescue
Festuca myuros*	Rattail fescue
Ficus carica*	Edible fig
Fouquieria splendens*	Ocotillo
Fraxinus velutina	Velvet ash
Galium murale*	Tiny bedstraw
Gazania linearis*	Treasureflower
Gazania rigens*	Treasureflower
Gilia angelensis	Chaparral gilia
Gnaphalium palustre	Western marsh cudweed
Gutierrezia californica	Matchweed
Hazardia squarrosa	Saw-toothed goldenbush
Helianthus annuus	Western sunflower
Heliotropium curassavicum	Chinese pusley
Heterotheca grandiflora	Telegraph weed
Hibiscus moscheutos*	Crimsoneyed rosemallow

Appendix E: Plant Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Hirschfeldia incana*	Perennial mustard
Hordeum marinum*	Mediterranean barley
Hordeum pusillum*	Little barley
Hordeum vulgare*	Common barley
Hypochaeris glabra*	Cat's ear
Isocoma menziesii	Goldenbush
Jacaranda mimosifolia*	Black poui
Jacobaea maritima*	Dusty miller
Juglans nigra*	Black walnut
Juniperus californica	California juniper
Koeleria macrantha	June grass
Lactuca serriola*	Wild lettuce
Lagunaria patersonii*	Cow itch tree
Lamarckia aurea*	Goldentop
Lantana montevidensis*	Trailing shrubverbena
Lasthenia gracilis	Common goldfields
Lasthenia coronaria	Royal goldfields
Lepidium lasiocarpum	Shaggyfruit peppergrass
Lepidium nitidum	Shining peppergrass
Lepidospartum squamatum	Scalebroom
Leptochloa uninervia	Sprangletop
Ligustrum japonicum*	Japanese privet
Liquidambar styraciflua*	Sweetgum
Lolium multiflorum*	Italian ryegrass
Lolium perenne*	English ryegrass
Ludwigia sp.	Primrose-willow
Lupinus bicolor	Miniature lupine
Lupinus nanus	Sky lupine
Lythrum hyssopifolia*	Hyssop loosestrife
Malacothrix glabrata	Desert dandelion
Malva parviflora*	Cheeseweed
Malvella leprosa	Alkali mallow

Appendix E: Plant Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Marrubium vulgare*	Horehound
Matricaria discoidea*	Pineapple weed
Medicago polymorpha*	Bur clover
Medicago praecox	Mediterranean medick
Medicago sativa*	Alfalfa
Melica imperfecta	Smallflower melicgrass
Melilotus indicus*	Annual yellow sweet clover
Melilotus officinalis*	Yellow sweet clover
Mesembryanthemum crystallinum*	Common iceplant
Mimetanthe pilosus	Downy Monkey Flower
Muilla maritima	Common muilla
Mirabilis laevis var. laevis	Desert wishbone-bush
Myrtus communis*	Myrtle
Nandina domestica*	Sacred bamboo
Nassella pulchra	Purple needlegrass
Nemophila menziesii	Baby blue eyes
Nerium oleander*	Oleander
Nicotiana glauca*	Tree tobacco
Olea europaea*	European olive
Oncosiphon piluliferum*	Stinknet
Opuntia littoralis	Prickly pear
Oxalis albicans ssp. californica	California oxalis
Oxalis corniculata*	Wood-sorrel
Parkinsonia aculeata*	Jerusalem thorn
Parkinsonia microphyllum	Small-leaf palo verde
Paspalum dilatatum*	Dallis grass
Pelargonium ×hortorum zonal*	Geranium
Pectocarya linearis	Slender pectocarya
Persicaria lapathifolium	Willow weed
Petunia ×atkinsiana*	Petunia
Phacelia distans*	Distant phacelia
Phoenix canariensis	Canary Island date palm

Appendix E: Plant Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Phoenix dactylifera	Date palm
Phoenix roebelenii	Pygmy date palm
Pinus canariensis	Canary Island pine
Pinus spp.*	Ornamental pine
Plagiobothrys bracteatus	Bracted popcorn flower
Plagiobothrys canescens	Valley popcorn flower
Plagiobothrys collinus	Cooper's popcorn flower
Plantago coronopus*	Cut-leaf plantain
Plantago erecta	California plantain
Plantago lanceolata*	Rib-Grass
Plantago major*	Common plantain
Poa annua*	Wintergrass
Poa pratensis*	Kentucky bluegrass
Polygonum aviculare ssp. depressum*	Smartweed
Polypogon monspeliensis*	Beardgrass
Populus fremontii	Fremont's cottonwood
Psilocarphus brevissimus var. brevissimus	Dwarf wooly marbles
Pyracantha fortuneana	Chinese firethorn
Quercus agrifolia	Coast live oak
Quercus chrysolepis	Canyon live oak
Quercus dumosa	Scrub oak
Raphanus sativus*	Wild radish
Rhaphiolepis indica*	Indian hawthorn
Ricinus communis*	Castorbean
Rorippa sinuata	Spreading yellowcress
Rosmarinus officinalis*	Rosemary
Rumex conglomeratus*	Whorled dock
Rumex crispus*	Curly dock
Rumex salicifolius	Willow dock
Sabal Mexicana	Texas sabal palm
Salix exigua	Narrow-leaved willow
Salix gooddingii	Black willow

Appendix E: Plant Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Salix lasiolepis	Arroyo willow
Salsola tragus*	Russian thistle
Schinus molle*	Peruvian pepper tree
Schinus terebinthifolius*	Brazilian pepper tree
Schismus arabicus*	Arabian schismus
Schismus barbatus*	Mediterranean grass
Scrophularia californica	California bee plant
Senecio vulgaris*	Old man of the spring
Sequoia sempervirens*	California redwood
Sisymbrium irio*	London rocket
Solanum elaeagnifolium*	White horse-nettle
Solanum parishii	Parish's purple nightshade
Solanum umbelliferum	Blue witch
Sonchus oleraceus*	Common sow thistle
Spergularia macrotheca var. macrotheca	Sticky sandspurry
Spergularia salina	Salt sandspurry
Stephanomeria exigua	Dean's wreath-plant
Stephanomeria virgata	Tall stephanomeria
Syagrus romanzoffiana	Queen palm
Tamarix sp.*	Tamarisk
Tamarix aphylla*	Athel tamarisk
Tamarix chinensis*	Five-stamen tamarisk
Taraxacum officinale*	Common dandelion
Tecoma capensis*	Cape honeysuckle
Thuja occidentalis xhybrid*	Arborvitae
Trichostema lanceolatum	Vinegar weed
Trifolium gracilentum	Pin-point clover
Trifolium hirtum*	Rose clover
Trifolium pretense	Red clover
Trifolium repens*	White clover
Triticum aestivum*	Common wheat
Tropidocarpum gracile	Slender keel fruit

Appendix E: Plant Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Typha angustifolia	Narrow-leaf cattail
Typha domingensis	Southern cattail
Typha latifolia	Broad-leaved cattail
Ulmus Americana*	American elm
Ulmus parvifolia*	Chinese elm
Uropappus lindleyi	Silver puffs
Urtica dioica ssp. holosericea	Stinging nettle
Urtica urens*	Dwarf nettle
Veronica persica	Birdeye speedwell
Vicia americana	American vetch
Vicia benghalensis	Purple vetch
Xanthium strumarium	Cocklebur

Appendix E: Plant Species Observed on March ARB

Sources: MARB 1998a, MARB 1998b, MARB 2005, MARB 2010, MARB 2012, Field Visit Oberbauer 09 August 2017

Notes:

* = non-native species

This page is intentionally left blank.

APPENDIX F:

WILDLIFE SPECIES OBSERVED ON MARCH ARB

This page is intentionally left blank.

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Invertebrates	
Branchinecta lindahli	Lindahl's fairy shrimp
Amphibians	
Hyla regilla	Pacific tree frog
Reptiles	
Cnemidophorus tigris	Coastal western whiptail
Crotalus viridis helleri	Southern Pacific rattlesnake
Elgaria multicarinata	Southern alligator lizard
Pituophis melanoleucus	Gopher snake
Sceloporus occidentalis	Western fence lizard
Sceloporus orcutti	Granite spiny lizard
Uta stansburiana elegans	Side-blotched lizard
Birds	
Accipiter cooperii	Cooper's hawk
Agelaius phoeniceus	Red-winged blackbird
Agelaius tricolor	Tricolored blackbird
Ammodramus savannarum	Grasshopper sparrow
Anas cyanoptera	Cinnamon teal
Anas platyrhynchos	Mallard
Aquila chrysaetos	Golden eagle
Ardea alba	Great egret
Ardea herodias	Great blue heron
Athene cunicularia	Burrowing owl
Buteo jamaicensis	Red-tailed hawk
Buteo lagopus	Rough-legged hawk
Buteo lineatus	Red-shouldered hawk
Buteo regalis	Ferruginous hawk
Carpodacus mexicanus	House finch
Carpodacus purpureus	Purple finch
Casmerodius albus	Great egret
Cathartes aura	Turkey vulture
Charadrius montanus	Mountain plover

Appendix F: Wildlife Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Charadrius vociferus	Killdeer
Columba livia	Rock pigeon
Corvus brachyrhynchos	American crow
Corvus corax	Common raven
Dendroica coronata	Yellow-rumped warbler
Egretta thula	Snowy egret
Elanus leucurus	White-tailed kite
Eremophila alpestris actia	California horned lark
Euphagus cyanocephalus	Brewer's blackbird
Falco mexicanus	Prairie falcon
Falco sparverius	American kestrel
Fulica americana	American coot
Gallinago gallinago	Common snipe
Geococcyx californianus	Greater roadrunner
Haliaeetus leucocephalus	Bald eagle
Icterus cucullatus	Hooded oriole
Lanius ludovicianus	Loggerhead shrike
Larus argentatus	Herring gull
Larus californicus	California gull
Larus delawarensis	Ring-billed gull
Mimus polyglottos	Northern mockingbird
Molothrus ater	Brown-headed cowbird
Nycticorax nycticorax	Black-crowned night heron
Pandion haliaetus	Osprey
Passer domesticus	House sparrow
Passerculus sandwichensis	Savannah sparrow
Pelecanus occidentalis	Brown pelican
Picoides nuttallii	Nuttall's woodpecker
Podiceps nigricollis	Eared grebe
Podilymbus podiceps	Pied-billed grebe
Sayornis nigricans	Black phoebe
Sayornis saya	Say's phoebe

Appendix F: Wildlife Species Observed on March ARB

SCIENTIFIC NAME	COMMON NAME
Sialia currucoides	Mountain bluebird
Sturnella neglecta	Western meadowlark
Sturnus vulgaris	European starling
Tringa melanoleuca	Greater yellowlegs
Turdus migratorius	American robin
Tyrannus verticalis	Western kingbird
Tyrannus vociferans	Cassin's kingbird
Tyto alba	Barn owl
Zenaida macroura	Mourning dove
Zonotrichia leucophrys	White-crowned sparrow
Mammals	
Canis latrans	Coyote
Dipodomys agilis	Pacific kangaroo mouse
Lepus californicus bennettii	San Diego black-tailed jackrabbit
Mephitis mephitis	Striped skunk
Mustela frenata	Long-tailed weasel
Peromyscus maniculatus	Deer mouse
Procyon lotor	Raccoon
Reithrodontomys megalotis	Western harvest mouse
Spermophilus beecheyi	California ground squirrel
Spilogale gracilis	Western spotted skunk
Sylvilagus audubonii	Audubon's cottontail
Thomomys bottae	Botta's pocket gopher

Appendix F: Wildlife Species Observed on March ARB

Sources: MARB 1998, MARB 1998, MARB 2005, MARB 2010, MARB 2012

This page is intentionally left blank.
APPENDIX G:

COMPOSITE NATURAL RESOURCES CONSTRAINTS ON MARCH ARB

This page is intentionally left blank.



Legend

	March Air Reserve Base
0	Historic Burrowing Owl Location
1111	Burrowing Owl Relocation Area
٠	Owl Observation (2019)
•	Occupied Burrow (2019)
=	SKR Observation (2019)
	SKR Open Space
4	Vernal Pool (2019)



Composite Natural Resources Constraints on March ARB March Air Reserve Base Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan 2021

Source: 1) Google Earth Pro

Ngalt\projMarch_ARB\709436\MapFiles\INRMP\Figure_ES-1_200429.mxd

This page is intentionally left blank.

APPENDIX H:

AIR INSTALLATION COMPATIBLE

USE ZONE REPORT FOR MARCH ARB

This page is intentionally left blank.

FINAL

AIR INSTALLATIONS COMPATIBLE USE ZONES STUDY MARCH AIR RESERVE BASE RIVERSIDE, CALIFORNIA



2018





28 November 2017

MEMORANDUM FOR AREA GOVERNMENTS

FROM: 452 AMW/CC 2145 Graeber St Ste 117 (Bldg 470) March ARB CA 92518-1667

SUBJECT: Air Installations Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Study

1. This AICUZ Study for March Air Reserve Base (ARB) is an update of the AICUZ study dated 2005. This update was initiated because of the beddown of new aircraft, operational changes and the introduction of new flight tracks. It is a reevaluation of aircraft noise and accident potential related to Air Force flying operations and is designed to aid in the development of local planning mechanisms which will protect the public safety and health, as well as preserve the operational capabilities of March ARB.

2. The AICUZ study contains a summary description of the affected area around the base. It outlines the location of runway clear zones, aircraft accident potential zones and noise contours and provides recommendations for development compatible with military flight operations. It is our desire that local governments incorporate these recommendations into community plans, zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building codes and other related documents.

3. This update provides noise contours based upon the Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL) metric and utilizes a planning noise contour. Long-range planning by local land use authorities involves strategies to influence present and future uses of land. Due to the long-range nature of planning, the Air Force provides planning contours–noise contours based on reasonable projections of future missions and operations. AICUZ studies using planning contours provide a description of the long-term (5-10 year) aircraft noise environment for projected aircraft operations that is more consistent with the planning horizon used by State, tribal, regional and local planning bodies.

4. We greatly value the positive relationship March ARB has experienced with its neighbors over the years. As a partner in the process, we have attempted to minimize noise disturbances through such actions as minimizing night flying, avoiding flights over heavily populated areas, reducing night maintenance activities and enforcing requested quiet hours. We solicit your cooperation in implementing the recommendations and guidelines presented in this AICUZ study update.

> MATTHEW J. BURGER, Colonel, USAF Commander, 452d Air Mobility Wing

CONTENTS

Page

SECT	ION 1 INTRODUCTION1-1
1.1	AICUZ Program1-1
1.2	Scope and Authority1-2
	1.2.1 Scope
	1.2.2 Authority
1.3	Previous AICUZ and Related Studies1-2
1.4	Changes Requiring an AICUZ Update1-3
	1.4.1 Operational Changes1-3
	1.4.2 Update of AICUZ Instruction1-4
	1.4.3 Noise Model Development1-4
SECT	ION 2 MARCH ARB, CALIFORNIA
2.1	Location
2.2	History
2.3	Mission
2.4	Host and Tenant Units2-7
2.5	Airfield Environment
2.6	Economic Impact2-10
SECT	ION 3 AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS
3.1	Aircraft Types
	3.1.1 Based Military Aircraft
	3.1.2 Based Government and Aero Club Aircraft
	3.1.3 Transient Aircraft
3.2	Maintenance Operations
3.3	Flight Operations
3.4	Annual Aircraft Operations
3.5	Runway and Flight Track Utilization
	3.5.1 Runway Utilization
	3.5.2 Flight Tracks
3.6	Noise Abatement3-20
3.7	Noise Complaints3-21
SECT	ION 4 AIRCRAFT NOISE
4.1	What is Sound/Noise
4.2	How Sound Is Perceived
4.3	Community Noise Equivalent Level4-4
4.4	Noise Contours
	4.4.1 Noise Contour Assumptions
	4.4.2 Comparison of 2005 AICUZ and 2018 AICUZ
4.5	March Air Reserve Base Small Arms Range

CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

SECTIO	ON 5 COMMUNITY AND AIRCRAFT SAFETY	
5.1	Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones	5-1
5.2	Imaginary Surfaces	
5.3	Hazards to Aircraft Flight Zones (HAFZ)	5-13
SECTIO	ON 6 LAND USE ANALYSIS	6-1
6.1	Land Use Compatibility and Guidelines	
6.2	Planning Authorities	
	6.2.1 State of California	
	6.2.2 Riverside County Airport Land Use Commission	
	6.2.3 City of Moreno Valley	
	6.2.4 City of Perris	
	6.2.5 City of Riverside	
6.3	Land Use and Zoning	
	6.3.1 Existing Land Use and Zoning	
	6.3.2 Future Land Use and Zoning	
6.4	Compatibility	6-13
	6.4.1 Land Use Analysis	6-13
	6.4.2 Existing Land Use Compatibility	
6.5	Avigation Easements	6-25
SECTIO	ON 7 IMPLEMENTATION	7-1
7.1	Air Force Role	7-1
7.2	State and Regional Roles	
7.3	Local Government Role	
7.4	Community Roles	7-4
7.5	Joint Land Use Study Program and Nominations	7-6
SECTIO	ON 8 REFERENCES	

LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix A Land Use Compatibility Tables Appendix B Key Terms

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 2-1.	March ARB Regional Location	2-2
Figure 2-2.	March ARB Map	2-9
Figure 2-3.	March ARB Airfield Diagram	. 2-11
Figure 3-1.	Summary of Flight Operations at March ARB from 2012 to 2018	3-8
Figure 3-2.	March ARB Runway 14/32 Arrival Flight Tracks	. 3-14
Figure 3-3.	March ARB Runway 14/32 Departure Flight Tracks	. 3-15
Figure 3-4.	March ARB Runway 14/32 Closed Pattern Flight Tracks	. 3-16
Figure 3-5.	March ARB Runway 12/30 Arrival Flight Tracks	. 3-17
Figure 3-6.	March ARB Runway 12/30 Departure Flight Tracks	. 3-18
Figure 3-7.	March ARB Runway 12/30 Closed Pattern Flight Tracks	. 3-19
Figure 4-1.	Common A-weighted Sound Levels	4-3
Figure 4-2.	March ARB 2018 AICUZ Noise Contours	4-6
Figure 4-3.	March ARB 2005 and 2018 AICUZ Noise Contours	. 4-10
Figure 5-1.	Runway CZs and APZs	5-3
Figure 5-2.	March ARB Runway Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones	5-4
Figure 5-3.	March ARB Runway 12 and 14 Clear Zones and Accident	
0	Potential Zones	5-5
Figure 5-4.	March ARB Runway 30 Clear Zones and Accident Potential	
0	Zones	5-6
Figure 5-5.	March ARB Runway 32 Clear Zones and Accident Potential	
0	Zones	5-7
Figure 5-6.	Runway Imaginary Surfaces and Transition Planes	5-9
Figure 5-7.	Runway 14/32 Imaginary Surfaces	. 5-11
Figure 5-8.	Runway 12/30 Imaginary Surfaces	. 5-12
Figure 6-1.	March ARB 2018 AICUZ Noise Contours and Surrounding	
0	Land Use	6-9
Figure 6-2.	ALUC Zones and 2018 AICUZ Noise Contours	. 6-10
Figure 6-3.	March ARB Clear Zones/Accident Potential Zones and	
0	Surrounding Land Use	. 6-11
Figure 6-4.	ALUC Zones and Clear Zones/Accident Potential Zones	. 6-12
Figure 6-5.	March ARB Clear Zones/Accident Potential Zones and Land	
0	Use Compatibility	. 6-16
Figure 6-6.	March ARB Runway 12 and 14 Clear Zones/Accident Potential	
8	Zones and Land Use Compatibility	. 6-17
Figure 6-7.	March ARB Runway 30 Clear Zones/Accident Potential Zones	
8	and Land Use Compatibility	. 6-18
Figure 6-8.	March ARB Runway 32 Clear Zones/Accident Potential Zones	
	and Land Use Compatibility	6-19
Figure 6-9	March ARB 2018 AICUZ Noise Contours and Land Use	
	Compatibility	6-20
Figure 6-10	March ARB 2018 AICUZ Noise Contours and Land Use	
	Compatibility Enlarged	6-21
	companying munified	

LIST OF TABLES

Table 2-1.	2014 March ARB Employment2-10	
Table 2-2.	2014 March ARB Direct Economic Impact	
Table 3-1.	Transient Aircraft	
Table 3-2.	Annual Projected Aircraft Flight Operations for 2018	
Table 3-3.	Annual Average Daily Aircraft Flight Operations Projected for	
	2018	
Table 3-4.	March ARB Runway Utilization	
Table 4-1.	Subjective Response to Changes in Sound Level	
Table 4-2.	Annual Aircraft Flight Operations for March ARB 2018 AICUZ	
	Noise Zones	
Table 4-3.	Off-base Land Area and Estimated Population within the	
	Greater Than 60 dB CNEL Noise Zones	
Table 4-4.	Off-Base Acreage Comparison 2005 AICUZ and 2018 AICUZ 4-9	
Table 4-5.	Predicted Peak Sound Level for M4 Rifle (dBP) 4-11	
Table 4-6.	Predicted Peak Sound Level for 12 Gauge Shotgun (dBP)	
Table 5-1.	Off-Base Land Area and Estimated Population within the Clear	
	Zones and Accident Potential Zones	
Table 5-2.	Description of Imaginary Surfaces for Military Airfields5-10	
Table 6-1.	. Municipality Land Use Acreage within High Noise Zones, Clear	
	Zones, and Accident Potential Zones (Acres)	
Table 6-2.	Generalized Land Use Categories and Noise/Safety	
	Compatibility	
Table 6-3.	Compatible and Not Compatible Land Use within March ARB	
	Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones (Acres)	
Table 6-4.	Compatible and Not Compatible Land Use within March ARB	
	2018 CNEL Zones (Acres)	

ACRONYMS

°F	degrees Fahrenheit
144 FW	144 th Fighter Wing
160 ATKS	160th Attack Squadron
163 ATKW	163rd Attack Wing
194 FS	194th Fighter Squadron
196 ATKS	196th Attack Squadron
336 ARS	336th Air Refueling Squadron
452 AMW	452 nd Air Mobility Wing
729 AS	729th Airlift Squadron
912 ARS	912th Air Refueling Squadron
ACC	Air Combat Command
AEDT	Aviation Environmental Design Tool
AETC	Air Education and Training Command
AFB	Air Force Base
AFH	Air Force Handbook
AFI	Air Force Instruction
AFM	Airfield Manager
AFPD	Air Force Policy Directive
AFRC	U.S. Air Force Reserve Command
AGL	above ground level
AGR	Active Guard Reserve
AICUZ	Air Installations Compatible Use Zones
ALUC	Airport Land Use Commission
ALUCP	Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan
AM	Airfield Manager
AMC	Air Mobility Command
AMW	Air Mobility Wing
ANG	Air National Guard
AOM	Airfield Operations Manager
AORB	Aircraft Operations Resource Book
AOZ	Airport Overlay Zones
APZ	Accident Potential Zones
ARB	Air Reserve Base
ART	Air Reserve Technician
ARW	Air Refueling Wing
ATC	Air Traffic Control
ATM	Air Traffic Manager
BASH	Bird Animal Strike Hazard
BRAC	Base Realignment and Closure
CBP RAU	U.S. Customs and Border Protection Riverside Aviation Unit
CEQA	California Environmental Quality Act
CFR	Code of Federal Regulations
CNEL	Community Noise Equivalent Level
СР	Command Post
CY	Calendar Year

ACRONYMS (CONTINUED)

CZ	Clear Zones
dB	decibel
dBP	peak sound level
dBA	A-weighted decibels
DNL	Day/Night Average Sound Level
DoD	Department of Defense
DoDI	Department of Defense Instruction
DOT	Department of Transportation
DSG	Traditional Guard
DST	Daylight Savings Time
EA	Environmental Assessment
EMI	Electromagnetic Interference
EPA	Environmental Protection Agency
EIS	Environmental Impact Statement
FAA	Federal Aviation Administration
FAR	Federal Aviation Regulation
FHA	Federal Housing Administration
FICAN	Federal Interagency Committee on Aviation Noise
FICUN	Federal Interagency Committee on Urban Noise
FMC	Federal Management Circular
FOL	Forward Operating Location
ft	foot/feet
FY	Fiscal Year
GC	Government Code
GCA	Ground Control Approach
GCI	Ground Control Intercept
GSA	General Services Administration
HUD	Department of Housing and Urban Development
HAFZ	Hazards to Aircraft Flight Zones
HAZMAT	Hazardous Materials
Hz	Hertz
IFR	Instrument Flight Rules
ILS	Instrument Landing System
INM	Integrated Noise Model
IFR	Instrument Flight Rules
JCS	Joint Chiefs of Staff
JLUS	Joint Land Use Study
JNGB	Joint National Guard Base
JPA	Joint Powers Authority
Lmax	Maximum Sound Level
MAJCOM	Major Command
MSL	mean sea level
NAF	Non-appropriated Fund
NDB	Non-directional Beacon
NEPA	National Environmental Policy Act

ACRONYMS (CONTINUED)

NGB	National Guard Bureau
NLR	Noise Level Reduction
NM	Nautical Miles
NOTAM	Notice to Airmen
NVG	Night Vision Goggles
OEA	Office of Economic Adjustment
OPR	Office of Planning and Research
ORE/ORI	Operational Readiness Exercise/Operational Readiness Inspection
PAO	Public Affairs Officer
PM	Project Manager
RAPCON	Radar Approach Control System
SB	Senate Bill
SEL	Sound Exposure Level
SFO	simulated flame out
SLUCM	Standard Land Use Coding Manual
TACAN	Tactical Air Navigation
TR	Traditional Reservist
USAF	United States Air Force
UFC	United Facilities Criteria
USEPA	U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
VA	Veterans Administration
VFR	Visual Flight Rules
VHF	Very High Frequency
VORTAC	VHF Omnidirectional Range/Tactical Aircraft Control

SECTION 1 INTRODUCTION

This study is an update of the March Air Reserve Base (ARB) Air Installations Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Study. The update presents and documents the changes to the AICUZ since the release of the last study in 2005. It reaffirms Air Force policy of promoting public health, safety, and general welfare in areas surrounding base while seeking development compatible with the defense flying mission. This study presents changes in flight operations since the last study, and provides current noise contours and recommendations for achieving development compatible with the defense flying mission.

1.1 AICUZ PROGRAM

Military airfields attract development – people who work on base want to live nearby while others want to provide services to base employees and residents. When incompatible development occurs near an installation or training area, affected parties within the community may seek relief through political channels that could restrict, degrade or eliminate capabilities necessary to perform the defense mission. In the early 1970s, the Department of Defense (DoD) established the AICUZ program. The goal of the program is to protect the health, safety, and welfare of those living and working near air installations while sustaining the Air Force's operational mission. The Air Force accomplishes this goal by promoting proactive, collaborative planning for compatible development to sustain mission and community objectives.

The AICUZ Program recommends that noise levels, Clear Zones (CZs), Accident Potential Zones (APZs), and flight clearance requirements associated with military airfield operations be incorporated into local community planning programs in order to maintain the airfield's operational requirements while minimizing the impact to residents in the surrounding community. Cooperation between military airfield planners and community-based counterparts serves to increase public awareness of the importance of air installations and the need to address mission requirements and associated noise and risk factors in the public planning process. As the communities that surround airfields grow and develop, the United States Department of the Air Force has the responsibility to communicate and collaborate with local government on land use planning, zoning, and similar matters that could affect the installation's operations or missions. Likewise, the Air Force has a responsibility to understand and communicate potential impacts that new and changing missions may have on the local community.

1.2 SCOPE AND AUTHORITY

1.2.1 Scope

This AICUZ study uses projected air operations. CZs, APZs, and noise zones associated with the March ARB runways are provided to the local communities along with recommendations for compatible land use near the base for incorporation into comprehensive plans, zoning ordinances, subdivision regulations, building codes, and other related documents.

1.2.2 Authority

Authority for the Air Force AICUZ program is lies in two documents:

- AFI 32-7063, Air Installations Compatible Use Zones Program implements Department of Defense Instruction (DoDI) 4165.57 Air Installations Compatible Use Zones and applies to all Air Force installations with active runways located in the United States and its territories. This instruction provides guidance to installation AICUZ Program Managers (PMs) with a framework that complies with Air Force Policy Directive (AFPD) 32-70.
- AF Handbook (AFH) 32-7084, AICUZ Program Manager's Guide provides installation AICUZ Program Managers (PM) specific guidance concerning the organizational tasks and procedures necessary to implement the AICUZ program. It is written in a "how to" format and aligns with AFI 32-70 Environmental Quality.

1.3 PREVIOUS AICUZ AND RELATED STUDIES

The following five studies are relevant to this document:

• *1998 March Air Reserve Base AICUZ Study* (March ARB 1998) is the initial compatible land use study completed for March ARB.

- 2005 March Air Reserve Base AICUZ Study (March 2005) which included the conversion from C-141 Starlifter aircraft to the C-17 Globemaster.
- Final Environmental Assessment for the Proposed Military Construction and Total Force Integration at March Air Reserve Base, California. July, 2010 (U.S. Air Force Reserve Command [AFRC] 2010). This document assessed the addition of the 912th Air Refueling Squadron (912 ARS) to the 452 AMW as an "Active Associate" to utilize existing KC-135 aircraft and a 60 percent (%) increase in KC-135 operations.
- Final Environmental Impact Statement F-15 Aircraft Conversion for the 144th Fighter Wing, California Air National Guard, Fresno-Yosemite International Airport, California. March, 2013 (California ANG 2015). This action replaced the California Air National Guard (ANG) 144th Fighter Wing (144 FW) F-16 aircraft with F-15 aircraft which included their Alert Mission at March ARB.
- Environmental Assessment for the California Air National Guard 163rd Attack Wing MQ-9 Beddown at March Air Reserve Base, California. March, 2017 (California ANG 2017). While 163rd Attack Wing (163 ATKW) pilots are based at March ARB, the launch and recovery element takes place at Southern California Logistics Airport. This document assesses the beddown and launch and recovery element of the MQ-9 at March ARB.

1.4 CHANGES REQUIRING AN AICUZ UPDATE

Based on the reasons listed below, this 2018 AICUZ Study is a needed update to the 2005 AICUZ Study and provides flight track, CZs, APZs, and noise zones information that reflects the most accurate picture of the aircraft activities associated with the base, as projected for 2018.

1.4.1 Operational Changes

The DoD aircraft fleet mix and training requirements may change over time. Resulting flight operations changes can affect the CNEL contours. The primary operational changes since the 2005 AICUZ Update are:

- The 144th Detachment Fighter Wing (144 FW) transition from F-16 to F-15 aircraft;
- Addition of the MQ-9 Reaper of the California Air National Guard 163rd Attack Wing (163 ATKW);
- Addition of the KC-135 Total Force Integration and associated flying hours.

The 2018 planning contours reflect the anticipated noise environment at March ARB.

1.4.2 Update of AICUZ Instruction

The March ARB AICUZ uses the most recent Air Force Instruction (AFI), which uses "annual average day." The primary reason for the change to average annual day is to be consistent with the land use recommendations guidelines.

1.4.3 Noise Model Development

To develop the noise contours that were presented in the 2005 March ARB AICUZ Study, military aircraft operations were modeled utilizing the DoD noise model NOISEMAP 6.5, and civilian operations were modeled utilizing the Federal Aviation Administration's Integrated Noise Model (INM). For the 2018 March ARB AICUZ Study, NOISEMAP 7.3 is used to model military aircraft operations, which include impedance (e.g., soft ground, hard ground, etc.) and elevation inputs that were not available in 2005. The FAA has replaced INM with the Aviation Environmental Design Tool (AEDT) 2c as the noise model for use at civilian airfields. Civilian operations at March ARB associated with March Joint Powers Authority (JPA) are now modeled using the FAA's new noise model AEDT. Noise level grids have been developed by both noise models for relevant aircraft operations, and these grids have been combined utilizing a plotting software program, NMPLOT 4.969; the result develops 2018 noise contours.

SECTION 2 MARCH ARB, CALIFORNIA

2.1 LOCATION

March ARB is in western Riverside County, California, approximately 70 miles east of Los Angeles (Figure 2-1). The base, which is composed of an airfield and associated support facilities, occupies approximately 2,300 acres of contiguous property and seven (7) geographically separate parcels. The March JPA planning area surrounds March ARB. In addition, the cities of Riverside, Moreno Valley, and Perris are adjacent to, or in close proximity to the base. March ARB has two active runways: Runway 14/32 is 13,302 feet in length and contains 1,000-foot overruns at both ends, while Runway 12/30 (3,061 feet in length) has 200-foot overruns at both ends.

2.2 HISTORY

The story of March Field began at a time when the United States was rushing to build up its military forces in anticipation of an entry into World War I. In early 1917, Congressional appropriations totaling approximately \$640,000,000 attempted to back the plans of General George O. Squier, the Army's chief signal officer, to "put the Yankee punch into the war by building an army in the air." At the same time, the War Department announced its intentions to build several new military installations. Efforts by Mr. Frank Miller, then owner of the Mission Inn in Riverside, Hiram Johnson, and other notable Californians, succeeded in gaining War Department approval to construct an airfield at Alessandro Field located near Riverside, an airstrip used by aviators from Rockwell Field on cross-country flights from San Diego.



1 inch = 4.07 miles

Shortly thereafter, the Army established a new airfield. Sergeant Charles E. Garlick, who had landed at Alessandro Field in a "Jenny" in November 1917, was selected to lead the advance contingent of four men to the new base from Rockwell Field. On February 26, 1918, Garlick and his crew and a group of muleskinners from nearby Colton, known to be experts in clearing land as well as for their colorful syntax, began the task of excavating the building foundations at Alessandro. On March 20, 1918, Alessandro Flying Training Field became March Field, named in honor of Second Lieutenant Peyton C. March, Jr., son of the Army Chief of Staff, who had been killed in a flying accident in Texas the previous month. By late April 1918, enough progress had been made in the construction of the new field to allow the arrival of the first troops. The commander of the 818th Aero Squadron detachment, Captain William Carruthers, took over as the field's first commander and for a time operated out of an office in the Mission Inn. On May 15 when the first JN-4D "Jenny" took off, March Field seemed to have come into its own as a training installation. The signing of the armistice on November 11, 1918, did not halt training at March Field initially, but by 1921, the decision had been made to phase down all activities at the new base in accordance with sharply reduced military budgets. In April 1923, March Field closed its doors with one sergeant left in charge.

In July 1926, Congress created the Army Air Corps and approved the Army's fiveyear plan which called for an expansion in pilot training and the activation of tactical units. Accordingly, funds were appropriated for the reopening of March Field in March of 1927. Colonel William C. Gardenhire, assigned to direct the refurbishment of the base, had just directed his crews to replace underpinnings of many of the previous buildings when he received word that future construction would be in Spanish Mission architectural design.



As March Field began to take on the appearance of a permanent military installation, the basic mission of the base changed. When Randolph Field began to function as a training site in 1931, March Field became an operational base. Before the end of the year, the 7th Bomb Group, commanded by Major Carl A. Spaatz, brought its Condor B-2

and Keystone B-4 bombers to the picturesque field. The activation of the 17th Pursuit Group and several subordinate units, along with the arrival of the 1st Bombardment Wing, initiated a period where March Field became associated with the Air Corps' heaviest aircraft as well as an assortment of fighters. In the decade before World War II, March Field took on much of its current appearance.

The attack on Pearl Harbor in December of 1941 quickly brought March Field back into the business of training aircrews. Throughout the war, many soon-to-befamous bombardment groups performed their final training at March before embarking for duty in the Pacific. During this period, the base doubled in area and at the zenith of the war effort March supported approximately 75,000 troops. At the same time, the government procured a similar-sized tract west of the San Diego highway that bordered the base and established Camp Hahn as an anti-aircraft artillery training facility. It supported 85,000 troops at the height of its activity.

After the war, March reverted to its operational role and became a Tactical Air Command base. The main unit, the famed 1st Fighter Wing, brought the first jet aircraft, the F-80, to the base. In 1949, March became a part of the relatively new Strategic Air Command. Headquarters Fifteenth Air Force along with the 33rd Communications Squadron moved to March from Colorado Springs in the same year. Also in 1949, the 22nd Bombardment Wing moved from Smoky Hill AFB, Kansas to March. Thereafter, these three units remained as dominant features of base activities.

From 1949 to 1953, the B-29 Super fortresses dominated the flightline at March AFB. For four months, July to October, the 22nd saw action over Korea, and in this brief period contributed to the elimination of all strategic enemy targets. Involvement in the Korean Conflict had no sooner ended when the wing converted from the huge propeller-driven B-29s to the sleek B-47 jet bombers and their



supporting tankers, the KC-97s. The KC-97s belonged to the 17th and 22nd Air Refueling Squadrons and represented an amazing jump in technology. This had been demonstrated earlier when General Archie Old, the Fifteenth Air Force commander, had led a flight of three B-52s in a non-stop around-the-world flight termed "Power Flight" in just 45 hours and 19 minutes. In 1960, the first Reserve unit was assigned to March, flying C-119s. The end of the 1960s saw March AFB preparing to exchange its B-47s and KC-97s for updated bombers and tankers. Increasing international tensions in Europe and elsewhere by September 16, 1963, brought March its first B-52B



bomber, "The City of Riverside." Soon 15 more of the giant bombers appeared on the flightline along with new KC-135 jet "Stratotankers." March's first KC-135, "The Mission Bell," arrived on October 4, 1963.

During this period, both tankers and bombers stood alert at March AFB as part of America's nuclear deterrent force. The might of the bombers and tankers, however, was soon to be used in quite another scenario. During the conflict in Southeast Asia, the 22nd Bombardment Wing deployed its planes several times and March crews learned well the meaning behind such names as Young Tiger, Rolling Thunder, Arc Light and Linebacker II. In these troubled years, the base served as a logistical springboard for supplies and equipment en route to the Pacific. Near the end of the conflict, March operated as one of the reception centers for returning prisoners of war.

Following the end of hostilities in Southeast Asia, the 22nd returned to its duties as an integral part of the Strategic Air Command. For the next eighteen years until 1982, March AFB effectively supported America's defensive posture. The 22nd Bombardment Wing, so long a key ingredient in March's long history, became an air refueling wing operating the new KC-10 tanker. The new tankers, able to accomplish considerably more than the KC-135s, promised a new tomorrow for the Strategic Air Command. Within months after the first KC-10 arrived at the base on August 11, 1982, crews quickly realized the ability of the new aircraft to carry cargo and passengers as well as impressive fuel loads over long distances. Air refueling for March AFB had entered a new age. The California Air National Guard (ANG) also arrived in 1982, bringing with them the F-4Cs. Beginning in the early 1980s, the KC-10 was the vehicle that carried March into a new technological epoch. The large KC-10s with their versatility and dependability again gave the base a featured part in America's efforts to retain a strong and flexible military air arm. The utter importance of the KC-10s in conventional operations became particularly apparent during DESERT SHIELD and DESERT STORM where their outstanding service contributed measurably to the success of American forces in the defense of Saudi Arabia and the liberation of Kuwait.

In 1993, March was selected for realignment. In August 1993, the 445th Military Airlift Wing transferred to March from Norton Air Force Base (AFB), California. On January 3, 1994, the 22nd Air Refueling Wing was transferred to McConnell AFB, Kansas, and the 722nd Air Refueling Wing stood up at March AFB. As part of the Air Force's realignment and transition, March's two Reserve units, the 445th Military Airlift Wing and the 452nd Air Refueling Wing were deactivated and their personnel and equipment joined under the 452 AMW on April 1, 1994. On April 1, 1996, March AFB officially became March ARB.

In 2005, the wing retired the C-141B Stratolifter fleet and a year later began receiving the first of eight C-17 Globemaster aircraft.

2.3 MISSION

The primary mission of the U.S. Air Force Reserve Command (AFRC) 452 AMW is to provide airlift support for the USAF and to train in tactical airlift and airdrop of personnel and supplies in combat, air refueling, and aeromedical evacuation. The 452 AMW is the host organization responsible for all operational functions at March ARB supporting the Air Mobility Command (AMC), Air Combat Command (ACC), and Pacific Air Forces, and is the AFRC's largest wing. Currently, both KC-135 and C-17 aircraft are assigned to March ARB and used for training missions of the 452 AMW. In addition to the AFRC, March ARB is home to the California ANG's 163 ATKW, which operates the MQ-9 Reaper. Another California ANG unit, the 144th Fighter Wing (144 FW) out of Fresno-Yosemite International Airport, operates an F-16 aircraft (soon to be transitioned to F-15 aircraft) alert mission out of March ARB. Additional tenants at March ARB,

include the U.S. Customs and Border Patrol Riverside Aviation Unit (CBP RAU), an Aero Club, and civilian operations through March JPA.

As the host unit at March ARB, the 452 AMW is responsible for providing certain on-base services and facilities that are common to the wing and tenant organizations. These include law enforcement, fire department, fuel storage area, airfield management, and service for transient aircraft.

In addition to the military entities at March ARB, airport facilities are used by civilian aircraft and organizations. A joint use agreement was created on May 7, 1997, between the DoD and the March JPA to establish March Air Field as a joint use airport. A joint use airport is defined by the USAF as one where the facilities are owned and operated by the USAF and are made available for use by civil aviation. Consequently, the joint use agreement permits the establishment and operation of commercial aviation, except for pilot training activities, where civilian and military entities share essential aviation facilities (March JPA 2005).

2.4 HOST AND TENANT UNITS

The based operating unit and host wing is the 452 AMW of the AFRC. Tenant flying units include 912th Air Refueling Squadron (912 ARS), an active associate squadron, the California Air National Guard's 144 FW and 163 ATKW, the CBP RAU, Aero Club, and March JPA.

2.4.1.1 452 AMW



The 452 AMW is host to more than 16 tenant organizations located at March ARB. The wing consists of the 452nd Operations Group, 452nd Maintenance Group, 452nd Mission Support Group and 452nd Medical Croup. The Operations Croup includes the 720th Airlift

Medical Group. The Operations Group includes the 729th Airlift Squadron (729 AS) which operates the C-17 Globemaster and the 336th Air Refueling Squadron (336 ARS) and 912 ARS which operate the KC-135 Stratotanker.

2.4.1.2 California Air National Guard



The 194th Fighter Squadron (194 FS) of the 144 FW accomplishes an alert mission at March ARB with four F-16 aircraft. Though the 194 FS currently utilize F-16 aircraft for their alert mission, when F-15 aircraft become available the unit will be expected to complete the

alert mission operating F-15 aircraft. The 160th and 196th Attack Squadrons (160 ATKS and 196 ATKS) of the 163 ATKW operates the MQ-9 Reaper, both the beddown and launch and recovery element, from March ARB, which would include a chase plane when operating outside Prohibited, Restricted, and Warning Area airspaces.

2.4.1.3 U.S. Customs and Border Protection



CBP RAU operate two-fixed wing PC-12s and one rotary-wing AS-350 from March ARB in fulfilling its role as the nation's only federal law enforcement center tasked to coordinate interdiction operations in the Western Hemisphere.

2.4.1.4 Aero Club



Established in 1954, the Aero Club at March ARB operates General Aviation Aircraft (i.e., fixed- and variable-pitch, turbo propeller, etc.) for use by eligible active or retired military personnel.

2.4.1.5 March JPA



The March JPA oversees general and commercial aviation operations at March ARB under the Joint Use Agreement established on 7 May 1997, and amended on 19 March, 2014.

2.5 AIRFIELD ENVIRONMENT

March ARB occupies approximately 2,300 acres of contiguous property and is surrounded by the March JPA planning area. The main airfield includes two runways (14/32 and 12/30) which handle all of the aircraft operations and is located to the west of the main base (Figure 2-2).





Legend March Air Reserve Base Air and Marine Operations Center (AMOC)

1 inch = 0.45 miles

0.6 Miles The aircraft apron and hangars are located to the east of both Runway 14/32 and Runway 12/30, and parallel to the later. March ARB contains two active runways: Runway 14/32 is a Class B runway with a length of 13,302 feet and width of approximately 200 feet; Runway 12/30 is a Class A runway with a length of 3,061 feet and width of 100 feet, and is closed to the public. (Figure 2-3). An in-



frame engine run up pad with aircraft anchor blocks is located on the parking apron and in front of the air traffic control tower for high-end power aircraft engine maintenance runs. There is a southwest facing blast fence at the southern end of the apron and another blast fence at the mid-way point of the apron facing to the northwest.

2.6 ECONOMIC IMPACT

During Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 March ARB employed over 9,500 personnel, as tabulated in Table 2-1. March ARB included a serving population of over 7,089 military personnel, with 6,378 traditional guardsmen and reserves. Civilian employees totaled 2,436 including 1,479 appropriated and 957 non-appropriated employees (Table 2-1).

Classification	Total
Active Duty Military	305
Air National Guard (ANG)/ Reserve (ART/AGR)	346
Traditional Guard (DSG) / Reserve (TR)	6,378
Individual Mobilization Augmentees (IMA)	60
Total Military	7,089
Civilian Employees Appropriated	1,479
Civilian Employees Non-appropriated	957
Total Civilian Personnel	2,436
Total Personnel	9,525

Table 2-1. 2014 March ARB Employment

Source: Filson 2016.



Figure 2-3. March ARB Airfield Diagram

In addition to a payroll over \$267 million, total expenditures for goods/services by March ARB exceeded \$182 million which results in a total economic direct impact of approximately \$450 million from March ARB (Table 2-2).

Classification	Category	
Appropriated Fund Military Payroll	Active Duty Military	\$19,093,768
	Air National Guard (ANG)/ Reserve (ART/AGR)	\$30,363,018
	Traditional Guard (DSG)/ Reserve (TR)	\$74,084,581
	Individual Mobilization Augmentees (IMA)	\$1,620,074
	Subtotal	\$125,161,441
Appropriated Fund Civilian Payroll	General Schedule	\$92,513,542
	Other	\$38,751,309
	Subtotal	\$131,264,851
Non-Appropriated Fund, Contract Civilian and Private Business Payroll	Civilian NAF	\$4,536,062
	Contract Civilian (not included elsewhere)	\$4,582,349
	Other	\$1,696,165
	Subtotal	\$10,814,576
Expenditures	Contracts and Procurement	\$ 28,073,896
	Material, Equipment and Supplies	\$127,582,415
	Construction	\$26,925,607
	Subtotal	\$182,581,918
Total	Total Economic Impact Estimate	\$449,822,785
Source: Filson 2016		

2014 March ARB Direct Economic Impact Table 2-2.

Source: Filson 2016.

SECTION 3 AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS

Aircraft operations are the primary source of noise associated with a military airbase. The level of noise exposure relates to a number of variables, including the aircraft type, engine power setting, altitude flown, direction of the aircraft, flight track, temperature, relative humidity, frequency and time of operation (day/night). This chapter discusses aircraft based at or transient (aircraft that are not permanently assigned, but conduct operations at the base on an occasional basis) to March ARB, the types and number of operations conducted at the airfields, and the runways and flight tracks used to conduct the operations.

Aircraft types that operate at March ARB are presented in Section 3.1. Sections 3.2 and 3.3 present aircraft operations and runway/flight track utilization, respectively. Section 3.4 summarizes flight profiles specific to March ARB.

3.1 AIRCRAFT TYPES

There are two primary classifications (types) of aircraft in operation at March ARB, fixed wing and rotary wing (helicopter). An assortment of these are permanently based at March ARB and are the most commonly observed aircraft to conduct operations from the base. Aircraft that are not permanently assigned, but conduct operations at the base on an occasional basis are referred to as transient. A brief description of base assigned and the most common transient aircraft is provided below.

3.1.1 Based Military Aircraft

Based military aircraft operating out of March ARB include airlift, refueling, remotely piloted, and fighter aircraft. The C-17 and KC-135 aircraft are operated by the 452 AMW, which includes the 729 AS (C-17) and 336 ARS (KC-135). The 912 ARS also operates the 452 AMW's KC-135 aircraft. The 194 FS of the California ANG, a detachment unit of the 144 FW, would operate F-15 aircraft. Also with the California ANG, the 160 ATKS and 196 ATKS operates the remotely piloted aircraft (RPA) MQ-9 Reaper.



The C-17 Globemaster is a Tactical and Strategic Airlift Aircraft that is powered by four turbofan engines and can operate on a runway as short as 3,500 feet. In addition to its cruise speed of 500 miles per hour (mph) and range of 2,700 miles, the C-17 can also reverse and is capable of completing a three-point turn. Thus, the C-17 is the most

flexible cargo aircraft in the airlift force.

The KC-135 Stratotanker provides the core aerial refueling capability for the USAF and has excelled in this role for more than 50 years. It also provides aerial refueling support to the Navy, Marine Corps and allied nation aircraft. The KC-135 is also capable of transporting litter and ambulatory patients using patient support pallets during aeromedical evacuations.





The F-15 Eagle is a twin engine, all-weather, extremely maneuverable, tactical fighter designed to permit the Air Force to gain and maintain air supremacy over the battlefield. This aircraft has a maximum low altitude speed of 900 mph and can achieve a maximum altitude of 65,000 feet.

Commonly referred to as the Reaper, the MQ-9 is powered by a single turbo-propeller and has multiple mission capabilities. It's a medium-altitude, longendurance RPA that is employed primarily against dynamic execution targets and secondarily as an intelligence collection asset. Given its significant loiter



time, wide-range sensors, multi-mode communications suite, and precision weapons -- it provides a unique capability to perform strike, coordination, and reconnaissance against high-value, fleeting, and time-sensitive targets.

3.1.2 Based Government and Aero Club Aircraft



This single-engine turbo propeller aircraft operated by the CBP RAU at March ARB, the fixed-wing PC-12 can be operated by one or two pilots and can accommodate up to nine passengers. This aircraft has a cruising speed of 320 mph and a range of 2,120 miles.

The rotary-winged AS-350 is also utilized by the CBP RAU at March ARB. This single-engine helocopter has a cruising speed of 152 mph and a range of 411 miles. A popular helicopter choice for law enforcement based on its versatility and minimal maintenance requirements.



Utilized by the March ARB Aero Club, the Cessna 172 is a fixed-pitch single-engine propeller aircraft that seats four. With a cruise speed of 140 mph and a range of 801 miles, the Cessna 172 is arguably the most popular general aviation aircraft in the world.





Also operated by the March ARB Aero Club, the Cessna 182 is a variable-pitched propeller aircraft that seats four and has a fixed-landing gear. The Cessna 182 has a cruising speed of 167 miles per hour and range of 1,070 miles.

3.1.3 Transient Aircraft



The F-16 Fighting Falcon is a compact, multi-role fighter aircraft. It is highly maneuverable and has proven itself in air-to-air combat and air-to-surface attack. It provides a relatively low-cost, highperformance weapon system for the United States and allied nations.



The C-130 Hercules primarily performs the tactical portion of the airlift mission and is capable of operating from rough, dirt strips; further, it's the prime transport for airdropping troops and equipment into hostile areas. With a cruising speed between 350 and 400 mph, depending on aircraft variant, this four engine turbo-propeller aircraft first

entered the Air Force service in 1959.

The primary mission of the HH-60G Pave Hawk helicopter is to conduct day or night personnel recovery operations into hostile environments to recover isolated personnel during war. The HH-60G is also tasked to perform military operations other than war,



including civil search and rescue, medical evacuation, disaster response, humanitarian assistance, security cooperation/aviation advisory, NASA space flight support, and rescue command and control.

Table 3-1 lists the various transient aircraft that utilize March ARB. The most frequent are the KC-135 and C-130 which perform Instrument Flight Rules (IFR) and Visual Flight Rules (VFR) closed patterns to Runway 32.

3.2 MAINTENANCE OPERATIONS

Maintenance is an integral part of any flying operation and requires a dedicated team of professionals to ensure that units can meet their flying requirements. Two key tasks in maintaining aircraft are low and high powered engine maintenance runs.

Engine runs may be conducted at any power setting between idle and maximum power and are typically conducted on aircraft parking ramps or just outside of maintenance hangars. All engine run areas are located to the east of Runway 12/30 on the main parking apron. Noise associated with these operations is included in the noise analysis and has been modeled for incorporation into the March ARB noise contours.

Aircraft Type	Description	Category
B-52H	Eight engines	Bomber
C-17	Four engines	Large Military
C-5	Four engines	Transport
B-737	Mid-size, narrow-body, twin-engine jet airliner	
B-757	Mid-size, narrow-body, twin-engine jet airliner	
DC-9	Mid-size, narrow-body, twin-engine jet airliner	
C-12	Twin-engine turboprop based on Super King Air	Small Military
C-130	Four-engine turboprop	Transport
E-3	Four engines based on B-707	Radar
E-6	Four engines based on B-707-320	Command
F-15	Twin Engine	Fighter
F-16	Single Engine	
KC-10	Based on the DC-10, three engines	Air Refueling Tanker
KC-135	Based on the B-707, four engines	
T-38	Twin Engine	Trainer
UH-1N	Two-blade, twin engine medium lift utility	Helicopter
HH-60	Four-blade, twin engine medium lift utility	
CH-53	Six-blade, twin engine heavy lift transport	
CH-46	Tandem rotor, three-blades per rotor, twin engine medium lift	
AH-1G	Two-blade, twin engine attack	

Table 3-1. Transient Aircraft

Source: March ARB 2016b.

Approximately 2.0 percent of all aircraft engine runs at March ARB occur during nighttime (10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.) and are mainly associated with pre-flight checks. The noise associated with pre-flight and engine maintenance engine runs were included in the noise analysis and modeling associated with the noise contours.

3.3 FLIGHT OPERATIONS

Flight activities, including where aircraft fly, how high they fly, how many times they fly over a given area, and the time of day they operate, must be fully evaluated to understand the relationship of flight operations and land use. This chapter discusses typical flight operations for aircraft based at March ARB.

Each time an aircraft crosses over a runway threshold (the beginning or ending of a runway's useable surface) with the intent to either takeoff, practice an approach, or land, it is counts as a single flight operation. For example, a departure counts as a single operation as does an arrival. However, when an aircraft conducts a pattern
(a departure followed by an immediate return) it counts as two operations. This is because the aircraft crosses both the approach and departure ends of the runway during the pattern.

Aircraft operations at March ARB are conducted on a year around basis and in general, experience very little variance in operations from month to month. The following paragraphs and figures highlight typical flight tracks that are followed during normal or increased operations. Each track is designed to maximize flight operations and, when possible, minimize the effects of noise.

- **Takeoff.** When an aircraft is positioned on the runway, the engine power is set to facilitate movement and eventual flight.
- **Departure.** For the purpose of air traffic sequencing, separation, noise abatement, compliance with avoidance areas and overall safety of flight, aircraft follow specific ground tracks and altitude restrictions as they depart the airfield's immediate airspace.
- **Straight-In Arrival.** An aircraft is aligned with the runway extended centerline and begins a gradual descent for landing. This type of approach enables an aircraft to maintain a smooth, stable and steady approach and requires no additional maneuvering.
 - **Overhead Break Arrival.** An expeditious arrival using VFR. The aircraft arrives over the airfield on the runway centerline at a specified point and altitude and then performs a 180 degree "break turn" away from the runway to enter the landing pattern. Once established, the landing gear and flaps are lowered and the pilot performs a second 180-degree descending turn toward runway centerline to land.
 - **Pattern Work.** Pattern work refers to traffic pattern training where the pilot performs takeoffs and landings in quick succession by taking off, flying the pattern, and then landing. Traffic pattern training is demanding and utilizes all the basic flying maneuvers a pilot learns: takeoffs, climbs, turns, climbing turns, descents, descending turns, and straight and level landings.
 - **Low Approach.** A low approach is an approach to a runway that does not result in a landing, but rather a descent towards the runway (usually below 500 feet above ground level [AGL]) followed by a climb-out away from the airfield. Low approaches are accomplished for a number of reasons. One such reason is to practice avoiding potential ground obstructions (i.e., vehicles, debris, stray animals, etc.).
 - **Touch and Go.** A touch-and-go landing pattern is a training maneuver that involves landing on a runway and taking off again without coming

to a full stop. Usually the pilot then circles the airport in a defined pattern known as a circuit and repeats the maneuver.

- Box/Arrival Pattern. Ground Control Approach (GCA) is a radar or "talk down" approach directed from the ground by an air traffic controller (ATC). ATC personnel provide pilots with verbal course and glide slope information, allowing them to make an instrument approach during inclement weather. A Box/Arrival Pattern is normally flown to practice GCA approaches. The Box/Arrival Pattern utilizes a "boxshaped" flight pattern with four 90-degree turns done at a set altitude, used to practice a variety of approach procedures at an airfield.
- **Radar Approach.** An instrument approach is provided with active assistance from ATC during poor weather conditions. ATC personnel direct the aircraft toward the runway centerline. Once established on the centerline, pilots use aircraft instruments to maintain runway alignment and adherence to altitude restrictions until the pilot is able to acquire visual sight with the runway environment. Pilots often practice this type of approach to maintain proficiency.
- **Simulated Flame-Out (SFO).** This is a visual flight maneuver used to simulate a landing recovery from a complete loss of engine thrust. To execute the maneuver, a pilot must establish the aircraft on a specified flight profile (altitude, airspeed, position over the airfield) which would allow the aircraft to glide safely across the runway threshold in a position to land. If properly executed, the maneuver should not require the use of additional engine power until after the maneuver is complete.

3.4 ANNUAL AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS

Figure 3-1 describes all aircraft operations that occurred at March ARB over a 5-year period, including based and transient aircraft. As described below, total annual operations account for each departure and arrival, including those conducted as part of a pattern operation.



2012-2016 transient, CBP RAU, Aero Club, and March JPA operations are consistent annually *estimation, includes 2016 ATC counts in addition to 163 ATKW proposed operations ~Includes all projected based, transient, CBP RAU, Aero Club, and March JPA operations Sources: March ARB 2016a, 2016b; March JPA 2016

Figure 3-1. Summary of Flight Operations at March ARB from 2012 to 2018

This study focuses on aircraft activity that is anticipated to occur during Calendar Year (CY) 2018 (CY18), taking into account existing based aircraft operations and allocated March JPA aircraft operations. March ARB is expected to conduct approximately 52,172 annual aircraft operations during 2018 as shown in Figure 3-1. The CY18 scenario accounts for full operational capability of the 163 ATKS MQ-9 Reaper operations and the transition of the 144 FS operations from F-16 aircraft to F-15 aircraft. Approximately 72 percent of the flight operations at March ARB are closed patterns in this scenario. Under the March ARB and March JPA Joint Use Agreement, March JPA is allocated up to 21,000 annual operations (only arrivals and departures); this allocation is also included in development of the study.

Consistent with Air Force policy, aircraft operations are modeled on an average annual day basis, thus the annual operations in Table 3-2 are divided by 365 resulting in approximately 143 average daily flight operations as detailed in Table 3-3.

					Arriv	als			Depart	ures			Closed I	Patterns			То	tal	
Category	Squadron	Aircraft	Engine*	Day 0700-1900	Evening 1900-2200	Night 2200-0700	Total	Day 0700- 1900	Evening 1900-2200	Night 2200- 0700	Total	Day 0700- 1900	Evening 1900- 2200	Night 2200- 0700	Total	Day 0700- 1900	Evening 1900- 2200	Night 2200- 0700	Total
	729 AS	C-17		596	130	3	729	708	21	0	729	8,734	3,886	0	12,620	10,036	4,038	4	14,078
	144 FS	F-15E	F-15E (X- 220)	374	21	21	416	374	42	0	416	364	20	0	384	1,112	83	21	1,216
	336/912 ARS	KC-135R		433	112	148	693	478	210	5	693	3,761	442	221	4,424	4,672	764	374	5,810
Based	163 ATKS	MQ-9	T34	568	0	0	568	568	0	0	568	1,136	0	0	1,136	2,272	0	0	2,272
		PC12	T34	155	17	0	172	153	19	0	172	258	0	0	258	566	36	0	602
	CBP RAU	AS350		78	8	0	86	76	10	0	86	128	0	0	128	282	18	0	300
		Cessna 172	GASEPF	761	27	0	788	770	18	0	788	1,418	0	0	1,418	2,949	45	0	2,994
	Aero Club	Cessna 182	GASEPV	262	0	0	262	262	0	0	262	472	0	0	472	996	0	0	996
Transient				664	0	4	668	668	0	0	668	1,568	0	0	1,568	2,900	0	4	2,904
March JPA				5,376	3,019	2,105	10,500	4,976	4,044	1,480	10,500	0	0	0	0	10,352	7,063	3,585	21,000
Total				9,267	3,334	2,281	14,882	9,033	4,364	1,485	14,882	17,839	4,348	221	22,408	36,137	12,047	3,988	52,172

Table 3-2.Annual Projected Aircraft Flight Operations for 2018

Sources: CBP RAU 2016; March ARB 2016a, 2016b; March ARB Aero Club 2016; March JPA 2016.

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.

Category	Squadron/Unit/ Group	Aircraft	Average Daily Arrival and Departure Operations	Average Daily Closed Operations	Total Average Daily Operations
	729 AS	C-17	3.99	34.58	38.57
	144 FS	F-15	2.28	1.05	3.33
sed	336/912 ARS	KC-135	3.80	12.12	15.92
Bas	163 ATKS	MQ-9	3.11	3.11	6.22
	CBP RAU	PC-12/AS-350	1.41	1.06	2.47
	Aero Club	Cessna 172/182	5.75	5.18	10.93
Trans	ient		3.67	4.26	7.93
March JPA			57.54	0	57.54
Total			81.55	61.36	142.91

 Table 3-3.
 Annual Average Daily Aircraft Flight Operations Projected for 2018

Sources: CBP RAU 2016; March ARB 2016a, 2016b; March ARB Aero Club 2016; March JPA 2016.

3.5 RUNWAY AND FLIGHT TRACK UTILIZATION

3.5.1 Runway Utilization

The frequency with which aircraft utilize a runway involves a variety of factors including, but not limited to:

- the airfield environment (layout, lights, runway length, etc.),
- direction of prevailing winds,
- location of natural terrain features (rivers, lakes, mountains, and other features),
- wildlife activity,
- number of aircraft in the pattern, and/or
- the preference of a runway for the purpose of safety and noise abatement.

Airfield Management, control tower personnel and the Supervisor of Flying establish the runway in use. Pattern procedures are adjusted accordingly to maximize air traffic flow efficiency.

Table 3-4 summarizes daytime and nighttime runway utilization by operation type and aircraft type. Runway 32 is used most frequently by all aircraft with approximately 95 percent of all operations, while the remaining 5 percent occur on Runway 14. Runway 12/30 is used exclusively by the March ARB Aero Club and CBP RAU rotary-wing aircraft.

		Based								Transients		March JPA	
Operation	Runway	729 AS	336/912 ARS	144 FS	163 ATKS	CBP RAU		Aero Club	Aircraft Halicoptor	Aircraft	Halicoptor		
		C-17	KC-135R	F-15	MQ-9	AS350	PC-12	C-172/- 182	Allclaft	Hencopter	Aircraft	Hencopter	
	14	5%	20%	2%	8%				5%		6%		
A mirrol	32	95%	80%	98%	92%		90%	5%	95%		94%		
Arrival	12					5%	1%			50%		4%	
	30					95%	9%	95%		50%		96%	
	14	11%	80%	99%	10%				30%		6%		
Demonstratio	32	89%	20%	1%	90%		90%	3%	70%	50%	94%		
Departure	12					5%	1%	5%		50%		4%	
	30					95%	9%	92%				96%	
Closed Pattern	14				10%								
	32	100%	100%	100%	90%		91%	2%	100%				
	12					5%	1%			50%			
	30					95%	8%	98%		50%			

Table 3-4.March ARB Runway Utilization

Sources: CBP RAU 2016; March ARB 2016a, 2016b; March Aero Club 2016, March JPA 2016.

3.5.2 Flight Tracks

Each runway has designated flight tracks which provide for the safety, consistency, and control of an airfield. Flight tracks depict where aircraft fly in relation to an airfield. They are designed for departures, arrivals and for pattern work procedures, and are designated for each runway to facilitate operational safety, noise abatement, aircrew consistency, and the efficient flow of air traffic within the tower's controlled airspace. Aircraft flight tracks are not set highways in the sky. While we show flight tracks as a line on the map, they are actually bands. Aircraft de-confliction, configuration, pilot technique, takeoff weight, and wind all affect the actual path taken on any given flight.

Flight tracks specific to March ARB result from several considerations, including:

- departure tracks routed to avoid noise-sensitive areas as much as possible;
- criteria governing the speed, rate of climb, and turning radius for each type of aircraft in the given airspace;
- efforts to control and schedule missions to keep noise levels low, especially at night; and
- coordination with the FAA to minimize conflict with civil aircraft operations.

Aircraft operating at March ARB utilize the following flight tracks:

- departures in both north and south directions;
- arrivals from both north and south directions;
- Runway 14/32 radar and visual closed patterns to the west and east of the airfield; and,
- Runway 12/30 visual closed patterns to the east of the airfield.

The typical flight tracks for Runway 14/32 and Runway 12/30 are depicted in Figures 3-2 through 3-7, starting with arrivals, then departures and closed patterns. These flight tracks were used for March ARB aircraft noise modeling.





Legend

- Runway

Departure FlightTracks



1 inch = 1.82 miles



Legend

Runway

Closed Pattern Flight Tracks



n



Runway — Arrival Flight Tracks





Runway Departure FlightTracks

Miles

1 inch = 1.46 miles



Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

Legend

- Runway

Closed Pattern Flight Tracks



1 inch = 0.34 miles

3.6 NOISE ABATEMENT

The Air Force recognizes that noise from military operations may cause concern for people living near military installations.

For this reason, the Air Force has established a Noise Program aimed at reducing and controlling the emission of noise and vibrations associated with the use of military aircraft, weapon systems and munitions while maintaining operational requirements. The result is the implementation of various strategies, techniques and procedures, documented under the March ARB Noise Abatement Program, that are aimed at protecting persons and structures from the harmful effects of noise and vibrations.

March ARB Noise Abatement Program includes quiet hours that coincide with the published operating hours and other times by Notice to Airmen (NOTAM). The Airfield Manager (AM) and staff are responsible for distribution of approved quiet hours, coordinating and submitting NOTAMs implementing quiet hours, and restricting prior permission required for applicable quiet hour times. All units operating on the airfield are required to comply with quiet hour restrictions. Emergencies as well as 144 FW and CBP RAU alert operations take precedence over any quiet hour restrictions. The AM and ATC will enforce quiet hours as directed and implement restrictions no later than five minutes prior to quiet hours.

Organizations requesting quiet hours must specify the type of operational restrictions, which fall under the "No", "Limit", or "Permitted" operational parameter and include: aircraft towing; aircraft engine runs, aircraft auxiliary power runs, aircraft taxi; vehicle and personnel movement; and runway operations.

During quiet hours, transient aircraft not permanently based at March ARB are not authorized to conduct pattern work between the hours of 9 p.m. and 11 p.m.; however, full stop (i.e. aircraft proceed to parking apron after landing) landings are authorized. Radar Approach Control (RAPCON) must utilize 5,000 feet MSL pattern altitude within confines of delegated airspace between the hours of 10 p.m. and 11 p.m. The tower must hold tanker or receiver aircraft awaiting wingman departure at 3,500 feet MSL or higher over the airfield. Base leadership reviews flight operations and their potential impact on surrounding communities. This requirement facilitates the planning, designation and establishment of flight tracks over sparsely populated areas and/or waterways as often as practicable as possible to balance operational safety and reduce noise exposure levels in surrounding communities.

3.7 NOISE COMPLAINTS

At times, military operations may draw noise complaints. The Air Force evaluates all noise complaints to ensure future operations, where possible, do not generate unacceptable noise. Concerned citizens are encouraged to contact the March ARB Public Affairs Office with any noise complaints at (951)-655-4137 or via email at 452amw.paworkflow@us.af.mil.

SECTION 4 AIRCRAFT NOISE

Terrain features, weather phenomena, man-made structures and daily life activity contribute to noise exposure. How a base manages aircraft noise can play a key role in shaping an installation's relationship with the adjacent communities. Aircraft noise management is ideally a key factor in local land use planning.

While the level of noise produced by aircraft may have a direct effect on communities in close proximity to military air installations, other factors also influence the noise impact. An airfield's layout (its buildings, parking ramps

and runways, etc.), type of aircraft, natural terrain features, weather phenomena, and daily activities all influence the levels of noise that the community experiences.

Because noise from aircraft may affect areas around the installation, the Air Force has defined noise zones using the guidance provided in the AICUZ instruction (AFI 32-7063).

4.1 WHAT IS SOUND/NOISE

Sound consists of vibrations in the air. A multitude of sources can generate these vibrations, including roadway traffic, barking dogs, radios – or aircraft operations. We call these vibrations compression waves. Just like a pebble dropped into a pond creates ripples, the compression waves – formed of air molecules pressed

together – radiate out, decreasing with distance. If these vibrations reach your eardrum, at a certain rate and intensity, you perceive it as sound. When the sound is unwanted, we refer to it as noise. Generally, sound becomes noise to a listener when it interferes with normal activities. Sound has three components: intensity, frequency and duration.



• Intensity or loudness is related to sound pressure change. As the vibrations oscillate back and forth, they create a change in pressure on the eardrum. The greater the sound pressure change, the louder it seems.

- Frequency determines how we perceive the pitch of the sound. Lowfrequency sounds are characterized as rumbles or roars, while highfrequency sounds are typified by sirens or screeches. Sound frequency is measured in terms of cycles per second or hertz (Hz). While the range of human hearing goes from 20 to 20,000 Hz, we hear best in the range of 1,000 to 4,000 Hz. For environmental noise, we use A-weighting, which focuses on this range, to best represent human hearing. While A-weighted decibels may be written as "dBA", if it is the only weighting being discussed, the "A" is generally dropped.
- Duration is the length of time we can detect the sound.

4.2 How Sound Is Perceived

The loudest sounds that can be comfortably heard by the human ear have intensities a trillion times higher than those of sounds barely heard. Because such large numbers become awkward to use, we measure noise in decibels (dB), which uses a logarithmic scale, which doubles the noise energy every three decibels.

Figure 4-1 is a chart of A-weighted sound levels from common sources. A sound level of 0 dB is approximately the threshold of human hearing and is barely audible under extremely quiet listening conditions. Normal speech has a sound level of approximately 60 dB. Sound levels above 120 dB can cause discomfort inside the ear, while sound levels between 130 and 140 dB are felt as pain.

Table 4-1 tabulates the subjective responses with change in (single-event) sound level. While noise energy doubles or halves with every three-decibel change, we do not perceive all that noise energy. It takes a 10 decibel increase or decrease for our ear to perceive a doubling or halving of loudness.



Sources: Harris 1979; Federal Interagency Committee on Aviation Noise (FICAN) 1997.

Figure 4-1. Common A-weighted Sound Levels

Table 4-1. Subjective Response to Changes in Sound Level

Change in Sound Level	Change in Loudness
20 dB	Striking 4-fold Change
10 dB	Dramatic 2-fold or Half as Loud
5 dB	Quite Noticeable
3 dB	Barely Perceptible
1 dB	Requires Close Attention to Notice

4.3 COMMUNITY NOISE EQUIVALENT LEVEL

When we hear an aircraft fly over, the question may be asked, "How loud was that?" While we may often find ourselves concerned over the loudness of a sound, there are other dimensions to the sound event that draw our interest. For instance, does one overflight draw the same interest as two separate overflights – or as twenty? Also, does the 30-second run-up of engines prior to takeoff roll draw the same interest as a 30-minute maintenance run? Additionally, is an overflight more noticeable at two in the afternoon – or two in the morning, when the ambient noise is low and you are trying to sleep?

The length and number of events – the total noise energy – and the time of day play key roles in our perception of noise. To reflect these concerns, the Air Force and the State of California use a metric called the Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL).

CNEL, when used as a metric for aircraft noise, represents the accumulation of noise energy from all aircraft noise events in 24-hours. Additionally, for all operations between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., a penalty of 10 decibels is added each event to account for the intrusiveness of nighttime operations. CNEL also adds a penalty for evening operations, adding a penalty of five decibels to each event between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m. CNEL represents the noise energy present in a daily period. However, because aircraft operations at military airfields fluctuate from day to day, CNEL is typically based upon a year's worth of operations and thus represents the annual average daily aircraft events.

4.4 NOISE CONTOURS

The Air Force prepares noise contours, as needed, to assess the compatibility of aircraft operations. Noise contours connect points of equal value, just as contours on topographic maps connect points of equal elevation. This AICUZ Study exhibits the present-day planning noise contours. The Air Force utilizes NOISEMAP, the DoD standard model for assessing noise exposure from military aircraft operations at air installations. Noise contours, when overlaid on local land use maps, can help to identify areas of incompatible land uses and assist communities in planning for future development around an air installation.

4.4.1 Noise Contour Assumptions

Assumptions included for the March ARB noise zones include:

- The California Air National Guard's 163 ATKW would be fully operational completing two (2) MQ-9 sorties per day, both during weekdays and one (1) weekend per month.
- The California Air National Guard's 144 FW would complete their alert mission at March ARB operating F-15 aircraft.
- March JPA would operate at their maximum annual allocation of 21,000 aircraft operations.

Table 4-2 presents the projected operations for the March ARB 2018 AICUZ noise zones (Figure 4-2).

Table 4-3 tabulates the off-base land acreage and estimated population within the greater than 60 dB CNEL noise zone. The population estimates are based on refined 2010 census block data for average numbers of persons per residence for each of the local municipalities (i.e., city of Moreno Valley, city of Perris, city of Riverside, and Riverside County) (US Census Bureau 2010). Using imagery, residential units within each noise contour were counted and multiplied by the average number of persons per residence within each municipality. The exposure to a minimum of 60 dB CNEL would include approximately 3,989 acres and 4,570 people, the majority of which (98 percent) would be exposed to CNEL between 60 dB and 64 dB. Very little acreage and no people would be exposed to CNEL greater than or equal to 75 dB off-base.

4.4.1.1 City of Moreno Valley

Within the City of Moreno Valley, the 60 dB CNEL noise zone extends to the north of Runway 14/32 and the 65 dB CNEL noise zone passes over a corner of the city's jurisdiction, where the highest noise level anticipated would be 69 dB CNEL.

The city's boundary also covers the south end of Runway 14/32 where the 60 dB, 65 dB, and 70 dB CNEL noise zones all pass through Moreno Valley jurisdiction. The highest noise level within the Moreno Valley would be 74 dB CNEL.



60dB	65dB	70dB	75dB
------	------	------	------

80dB



Category		Based											
Squadron		729 AS	144 FS	336/912 ARS	163 ATKS	CBP RAU		Aero Club		Transiont	March	Total	
	Aircraft		C-17	F-15E	KC-135R	MQ-9	PC12	AS350	Cessna 172	Cessna 182	Transferit	JPA	Total
Engine*		-	F-15E (X-220)	-	T34	T34	-	GASEPF	GASEPV				
	Day	0700-1900	596	374	433	568	155	78	761	262	664	5,376	9,267
Amitrolo	Evening	1900-2200	130	21	112	0	17	8	27	0	0	3,019	3,334
AIIIvais	Night	2200-0700	3	21	148	0	0	0	0	0	4	2,105	2,281
	Total		729	416	693	568	172	86	788	262	668	10,500	14,882
	Day	0700-1900	708	374	478	568	153	76	770	262	668	4,976	9,033
Doparturos	Evening	1900-2200	21	42	210	0	19	10	18	0	0	4,044	4,364
Departures	Night	2200-0700	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	0	0	1,480	1,485
	Total		729	416	693	568	172	86	788	262	668	10,500	14,882
	Day	0700-1900	8,734	364	3,761	1,136	258	128	1,418	472	1,568	0	17,839
Closed	Evening	1900-2200	3,886	20	442	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	4,348
Patterns	Night	2200-0700	0	0	221	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	221
	Total		12,620	384	4,424	1,136	258	128	1,418	472	1,568	0	22,408
	Day	0700-1900	10,036	1,112	4,672	2,272	566	282	2,949	996	2,900	10,352	36,137
Total	Evening	1900-2200	4,038	83	764	0	36	18	45	0	0	7,063	12,047
10101	Night	2200-0700	4	21	374	0	0	0	0	0	4	3,585	3,988
	Total		14,078	1,216	5,810	2,272	602	300	2,994	996	2,904	21,000	52,172

Table 4-2. Annual Aircraft Flight Operations for March ARB 2018 AICUZ Noise Zones

CNEL (dB)	Acres	Housing Units	Population
60-64	2,847	1,229	4,483
65-69	1,052	18	75
70-74	90	3	12
75-79	0	0	0
80+	0	0	0
Total	3,989	1,250	4,570

Table 4-3.Off-base Land Area and Estimated Population within the Greater
Than 60 dB CNEL Noise Zones

Sources: Amec Foster Wheeler 2017a; U.S. Census Bureau 2010.

4.4.1.2 City of Perris

The City of Perris is situated directly along the southern end of Runway 14/32 where the majority of aircraft arrivals and closed patterns occur, thus Perris has the largest amount of acreage exposed to noise levels above 60 dB CNEL when compared to the neighboring municipalities. The 60 dB, 65 dB, and 70 dB CNEL noise zones all extend inside the city of Perris boundary, with the largest anticipated cumulative noise level being 73 dB CNEL.

4.4.1.3 City of Riverside

Within the City of Riverside, the 60 dB CNEL noise zone extends to the north and west of March ARB following the departure track from Runway 32 that departs to the north and is followed by a 140-degree left turn which heads south. The 65 dB CNEL noise zone extends slightly into the Riverside boundary, where the highest expected noise level would be 66 dB CNEL.

4.4.1.4 Riverside County

The 60 dB CNEL noise zone passes through Riverside County's jurisdiction directly west of the base; additionally, part of the 65 dB CNEL noise zone extends into Riverside County jurisdiction to a lesser extent.

4.4.2 Comparison of 2005 AICUZ and 2018 AICUZ

As depicted in Figure 4-3, there is a large reduction in the noise footprint and exposure when comparing the 2005 AICUZ to the current study. This reduction is due largely to the methodology (determining aircraft operational numbers based on average annual day instead of average busy day); changes in the aircraft noise models, both civilian (INM in 2005 and AEDT in 2018) and military (newer version of NOISEMAP); and modern aircraft engines (quieter than their predecessors).

The area of off-base noise exposure above 60 dB CNEL from aircraft operations at March ARB totals approximately 1,954 acres less when comparing the current study (2018) to the 2005 AICUZ Study (Table 4-4).

CNEL (JD)	Ac	Difforence	
CNEL (UD)	2005	2018	Difference
60-64	3,959	2,847	-1,112
65-69	1,501	1,052	-449
70-74	417	90	-327
75-79	66	0	66
80+	0	0	0
Total	5,943	3,989	-1,954

 Table 4-4.
 Off-Base Acreage Comparison 2005 AICUZ and 2018 AICUZ

Sources: Amec Foster Wheeler 2017a; U.S. Census Bureau 2010.

4.5 MARCH AIR RESERVE BASE SMALL ARMS RANGE

Outside of the March ARB airfield boundary is a geographically separate parcel with an outdoor small arms firing range facility utilized primarily by the base's security forces. The range contains shooting positions and targets in a northeast to southwest orientation. Both firing positions and targets are under cover; further, the target backstop starts at floor level and meets the roof. The range accommodates the following weapons: M9; M4; and 12 gauge shotgun (March ARB 2017b). Table 4-5 and 4-6 presents peak sound levels (dBP) for the M4 and 12-gauge shotgun, the two loudest of the three weapons, respectively. The range of levels are based on sound propagation between the source and receiver without



Legena	Ν
March ARB 2018 Noise Contours	\mathbf{A}
2018 Noise Contour levels (CNEL) 60dB, 65dB, 70dB, 75dB, 80dB	0 1.95
2005 Noise Contour Levels (CNEL)	Miles Miles
60dB 65dB 70dB 75dB 80dB	1 inch = 1.29 miles

Distance (feet)	Azimuth						
Distance (reet)	0	90	180				
164	135-150	112-127	102-117				
328	113-128	106-121	95-110				
656	106-121	99-114	89-104				
1,312	93-108	86-101	78-93				
2,624	85-100	77-92	69-84				
5,249	75-90	67-82	59-74				

 Table 4-5.
 Predicted Peak Sound Level for M4 Rifle (dBP)

Sources: Hede and Bullen 1982, O'Loughlin et. al. 1986.

Table 4-6. Predicted Peak Sound Level for 12 Gauge Shotgun (dBP)

Distance (feet)	Azimuth (Degrees)						
Distance (reet)	0	90	180				
164	119-134	107-122	107-122				
328	112-127	100-115	101-116				
656	105-120	93-108	95-110				
1,312	94-109	83-98	85-100				
2,624	85-100	74-89	77-92				
5,249	76-91	65-80	68-83				

Sources: Hede and Bullen 1982, O'Loughlin et. al. 1986.

any barriers. The lower level numbers are expected when the receiver is upwind of the source and higher numbers when the receiver is downwind of the source (Hede and Bullen 1982; O'Loughlin et. al. 1986).

The nearest residences to the March ARB outdoor range is approximately 1,970 feet from the firing positions and the line of sight from the residences to the firing positions is blocked by both an earthen berm and target backstop.

Similar range configurations with covered firing positions and targets, wall enclosures, and target backstops result in a noise level of 87 dBP between 1,475 and 1,970 feet from the firing positions (Warrenton Training Center 2005). Based on the weapons, configuration of the range, and distance to the nearest residence, it is anticipated that residences would experience a noise level of approximately 87 dBP or less.

SECTION 5 COMMUNITY AND AIRCRAFT SAFETY

As development increases near an airfield, more people may be exposed to the potential risks from nearby aircraft operations. Airfield safety is a shared responsibility between the Air Force and surrounding communities, each playing a vital role in its success.. Cooperation between the Air Force and the community results in strategic and effective land use planning and development. As such, the Air Force has established a flight safety program and has designated areas of accident potential around its air installations to assist in preserving the health, safety, and welfare of residents living near the airfield. This AICUZ Study provides the information needed, in part, to reach this shared safety goal.

Identifying safety issues assists the community in developing land uses compatible with airfield operations. As part of the AICUZ program, the Air Force defines areas of accident potential, imaginary surfaces, and hazards to flight.

Section 5.1 discusses clear zones and accident potential zones. Section 5.2 presents the imaginary surfaces and Section 5.3 discusses the zones associated with hazards to aircraft flight.

5.1 CLEAR ZONES AND ACCIDENT POTENTIAL ZONES

In the 1970s and 1980s, the military conducted studies of historic accident and operations data throughout the military. The studies showed that most aircraft mishaps occur on or near the runway, diminishing in likelihood with distance from the runway. Based on these studies, the DOD identified Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones (APZ) as areas where an aircraft accident is most likely to occur if an accident were to take place – these zones are not predictors of accidents. The studies identified three areas that, because of accident potential, should be considered for density and land use restrictions: the Clear Zone (CZ), Accident Potential Zone I (APZ I) and Accident Potential Zone II (APZ II). The CZs and APZs are described in the bullets below and are shown on Figure 5-1.

• **Clear Zone.** At the end of all active Air Force runways is an area known as the Clear Zone. The CZ is a square area beyond the end of the runway and centered on the runway centerline extending outward for 3,000 feet. A Clear Zone is required for all active runways and should remain undeveloped.



Figure 5-1. Runway CZs and APZs

- **APZ I.** Beyond the CZ is Accident Potential Zone I (APZ I). APZ I is 3,000 feet in width and 5,000 feet in length along the extended runway centerline.
- **APZ II.** Accident Potential Zone II is the rectangular area beyond APZ I. APZ II is 3,000 feet in width by 7,000 feet in length along the extended runway centerline.

While the APZs extend outward from the ends of the runway along the extended runway centerline, base may add a curved APZ where over 80-percent of the operations follow a curved departure.

Within the CZ, most uses are incompatible with military aircraft operations. For this reason, it is the Air Force's policy, where possible, to acquire real property interests in land within the CZ to ensure incompatible development does not occur. Within APZ I and APZ II, a variety of land uses are compatible; however, higher density uses (e.g., schools, apartments, churches, etc.) should be restricted because of the greater safety risk in these areas. Chapter 6 discusses land use and recommendations for addressing incompatibility issues within APZs for each runway.

March ARB has two active runways which carry different class designations based on their size and capability, thus the size of the CZs and APZs associated with each runway differ. Runway 14/32 is a Class B runway and at both ends has CZs that encompass an area 3,000 feet wide by 3,000 feet long. Beyond the CZs are an APZ I that is 3,000 feet wide by 5,000 feet long, and an APZ II that is 3,000 feet wide by 7,000 feet long. Runway 12/30 is a Class A runway and at both ends has CZs that encompass an area 1,000 feet wide by 3,000 feet long, an APZ I that is 1,000 feet wide by 2,500 feet long, and an APZ II that is 1,000 feet wide by 2,500 feet long, and an APZ II that is 1,000 feet wide by 2,500 feet long, and an APZ II that is 1,000 feet long. Figure 5-2 through 5-5 depicts the CZs and APZs for Runways 14/32 and 12/30 at March ARB.



March ARB Runway 12 and 14 Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones Figure 5-3



March ARB Runway 30 Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones Figure 5-4



1 inch = 0.29 miles

March ARB Runway 32 Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones Figure 5-5







1 inch = 0.43 miles

Table 5-1 tabulates the off-base land acreage and estimated population within the CZs and APZs. While some portions of the CZs and APZs associated with March ARB runways fall within jurisdiction of each local government (i.e., city of Moreno Valley, city of Perris, city of Riverside, and Riverside County), only the cities of Moreno Valley and Perris have residences within the APZs. To the north end of Runway 14/32 within the city of Moreno Valley, approximately 44 residential units are within APZ II. There are 37 and 38 residential units in APZ I and APZ II, respectively, in the city of Perris to the south end of Runway 14/32. To determine the population within the APZs, the identical method to determining populations within noise contour levels was applied.

Table 5-1.Off-Base Land Area and Estimated Population within the ClearZones and Accident Potential Zones

Zone	Acres	Population
CZ	72	0
APZ I	731	154
APZ II	1,034	323
Total	1,837	477

Source: U.S. Census Bureau 2010

5.2 IMAGINARY SURFACES

The DoD and Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) identify a complex series of imaginary planes and transition surfaces which define the airspace needed to remain free of obstructions around an airfield. Obstruction-free imaginary surfaces ensure safe flight approaches, departures, and pattern operations. Obstructions include natural terrain and man-made features, such as buildings, towers, poles, wind turbines, cell towers, and other vertical obstructions to airspace navigation.

Fixed-wing runways and rotary-wing runways/helipads have different imaginary surfaces. Brief descriptions of the imaginary surfaces for fixed-wing runways are provided on Figure 5-6 and in Table 5-2. Figure 5-7 and Figure 5-8 depict runway airspace imaginary surfaces specific to March ARB, specifically Runway 14/32 and Runway 12/30, respectively. In general, the Air Force does not permit above-ground structures in the primary surface, and height restrictions apply to transitional surfaces and approach and departure surfaces. Height restrictions are more stringent the closer you are to the runway and flight paths.



Figure 5-6. Runway Imaginary Surfaces and Transition Planes

 Table 5-2.
 Description of Imaginary Surfaces for Military Airfields

Primary Surface	An imaginary surface symmetrically centered on the runway, extending 200 feet beyond each runway end that defines the limits of the obstruction clearance requirements in the vicinity of the landing area. The width of the primary surface is 2,000 feet, or 1,000 feet on each side of the runway centerline.
Approach-Departure Clearance Surface	This imaginary surface is symmetrically centered on the extended runway centerline, beginning as an inclined plane (glide angle) at the end of the primary surface (200 feet beyond each end of the runway), and extending for 50,000 feet. The slope of the approach- departure clearance surface is 50:1 until it reaches an elevation of 500 feet above the established airfield elevation. It then continues horizontally at this elevation to a point 50,000 feet from the starting point. The width of this surface at the runway end is 2,000 feet, flaring uniformly to a width of 16,000 feet at the end point.
Inner Horizontal Surface	This imaginary surface is an oval plane at a height of 150 feet above the established airfield elevation. The inner boundary intersects with the approach-departure clearance surface and the transitional surface. The outer boundary is formed by scribing arcs with a radius 7,500 feet from the centerline of each runway end and interconnecting these arcs with tangents.
Conical Surface	This is an inclined imaginary surface extending outward and upward from the outer periphery of the inner horizontal surface for a horizontal distance of 7,000 feet to a height of 500 feet above the established airfield elevation. The slope of the conical surface is 20:1. The conical surface connects the inner and outer horizontal surfaces.
Outer Horizontal Surface	This imaginary surface is located 500 feet above the established airfield elevation and extends outward from the outer periphery of the conical surface for a horizontal distance of 30,000 feet.
Transitional Surface	This surface extends outward and upward at right angles to the runway centerline and extended runway centerline at a slope of 7:1. The transitional surface connects the primary and the approach- departure clearance surfaces to the inner horizontal, the conical, and the outer horizontal surfaces.
Runway 14/32 Imaginary Surfaces Figure 5-7



City Boundary

INNER HORIZONTAL SURFACE

1 inch = 2.99 miles





Runway PRIMARY SURFACE APPROACH-DEPARTURE CLEARANCE SURFACE TRANSITIONAL SURFACE



1 inch = 0.47 miles

5.3 HAZARDS TO AIRCRAFT FLIGHT ZONES (HAFZ)

Certain land uses and activities can pose potential hazards to flight. To ensure land uses and activities are examined for compatibility, the Air Force has identified a Hazards to Aircraft Flight Zone (HAFZ). The HAFZ is defined as the area within the "Imaginary Surfaces" that are shown in Figures 5-7 and 5-8, Imaginary Surfaces for Runway 14/32 and Runway 12/30 at March ARB, respectively. Unlike Noise and Safety Zones, the HAFZ does not have recommended land use compatibility tables. Instead, it is a consultation zone recommending that project applicants and local planning bodies consult with the Air Force to ensure the project is compatible with Air Force operations. These land uses and activities include:

- **Height:** Tall objects can pose significant hazards to flight operations or interfere with navigational equipment (including radar). City/County agencies involved with approvals of permits for construction should require developers to submit calculations which show that projects meet the height restriction criteria of 14 CFR, Part 77.17, for the specific airfield described in the AICUZ study. City and County agencies may also consider requiring a "Determination of No Hazard" issued by the Federal Aviation Administration for any tall objects within this zone.
- Visual Interference: Industrial or agricultural sources of smoke, dust, and steam in the airfield vicinity can obstruct the pilot's vision during takeoff, landing, or other periods of low-altitude flight. Close coordination between the base and the landowner can often mitigate these concerns. For example, irrigating before plowing can greatly reduce dust concerns.
- **Light Emissions:** Bright lights, either direct or reflected, in the airfield vicinity can impair a pilot's vision, especially at night. A sudden flash from a bright light causes a spot or "halo" to remain at the center of the visual field for a few seconds or more, rendering a person virtually blind to all other visual input. This is particularly dangerous for pilots at night when the flash can diminish the eye's adaptation to darkness. The eyes partially recover from this adaptation in a matter of minutes, but full adaptation typically requires 40 to 45 minutes. Specific examples of light emissions that can interfere with the safety of nearby aviation operations include:
 - Lasers that emit in the visible spectrum can be potentially harmful to a pilot's vision during both day and night.
 - The increasing use of energy-efficient LED lights also poses potential conflicts in areas where pilots use Night Vision Goggles (NVGs).
 NVGs can exaggerate the brightness of these lights, interfering with

pilot vision.

- The use of red LED lights to mark obstructions can produce an unintended safety consequence because red LED lights are not visible on most NVG models, rendering them invisible to NVG users in the area.
- **Bird Animal Strike Hazard (BASH):** Wildlife represents a significant hazard to flight operations. Birds, in particular, are drawn to different habitat types found in the airfield environment including hedges, grass, brush, forest, water, and even the warm pavement of the runways. Although most bird and animal strikes do not result in crashes, they cause structural and mechanical damage to aircraft as well as loss of flight time. Most collisions occur when the aircraft is at an elevation of less than 1,000 feet. Due to the speed of the aircraft, collisions with wildlife can happen with considerable force.

To reduce the potential of a BASH, the Air Force recommends that land uses that attract birds not be located near installations with an active air operations mission. These land uses include but not limited to:

- Waste disposal operations
- Wastewater treatment facilities
- Transfer stations
- o Landfills
- Golf courses
- Wetlands
- Storm water ponds
- Retention basins
- o Dredge disposal sites
- o Fruit trees

Birds and raptors in search of food or rodents will flock to landfills, increasing the probability of BASH occurrences in the vicinity of these facilities. Design modifications also can be used to reduce the attractiveness of these types of land uses to birds and other wildlife.

• **Radio Frequency/Electromagnetic Interference (RF/EMI):** The American National Standards Institute defines Electromagnetic Interference (EMI) as any electromagnetic disturbance that interrupts, obstructs, or otherwise degrades or limits the effective performance of electronics/electrical

equipment. EMI may be caused by atmospheric phenomena, such as lightning or precipitation static, and by non-telecommunications equipment, such as vehicles and industrial machinery.

New generations of military aircraft are highly dependent on complex electronic systems for navigation and critical flight and mission-related functions. Consequently, communities should use care when siting any activities that create EMI. Many of these sources are low-level emitters of EMI. However, when combined, they have an additive quality.

EMI also affects consumer devices, such as cell phones, FM radios, television reception, and garage door openers. In some cases, the source of interference occurs when consumer electronics use frequencies set aside for military use.

SECTION 6 LAND USE ANALYSIS

The AICUZ area of influence or the "AICUZ footprint" of an airfield is the combination of noise contours, CZ, APZs, and the HAFZ, and is used as the basis for the land use compatibility analysis. The AICUZ footprint defines the minimum recommended area within which land use controls are needed to enhance the health, safety, and welfare of those living or working near a military airfield and to preserve the flying mission. The AICUZ footprint, combined with the guidance and recommendations set forth in the AICUZ study, are the fundamental tools necessary for the planning process. The Air Force recommends local and regional governments adopt the AICUZ noise zones, CZs, APZs and HAFZ into planning studies, regulations, and processes to best guide compatible development around the installation. This study uses the AICUZ footprint (Figures 6-1 and 6-3) for March ARB as the basis for the land use compatibility analysis.

6.1 LAND USE COMPATIBILITY AND GUIDELINES

In an effort to establish long-term compatibility for lands within the vicinity of military air installations, the DoD has created land use compatibility recommendations based on the Federal Highway Administration's Standard Land Use Coding Manual (SLUCM). These guidelines are used by DoD personnel for on-base planning and for engaging with the local community to foster compatible land use development. Table A-1 of Appendix A shows the suggested land use compatibility guidelines within the Clear Zones (CZ) and Accident Potential Zones (APZs). Table A-2 of Appendix A provides land use compatibility recommendations within CNEL noise contours.

6.2 PLANNING AUTHORITIES

This section presents the State of California, Riverside County, and the municipalities that have land use jurisdiction near March ARB, including descriptions of objectives to address existing and future land use specifically influenced by aircraft operations at March ARB. Riverside County exercises control over unincorporated lands to the east and west of March ARB. The City of Perris exercises land use control to the south and south west of the base, the City

of Moreno Valley and City of Riverside exercise land use control to the north and northeast and northwest, respectively of the base. The Riverside Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC) has developed noise and safety compatibility guidelines for all areas surrounding March ARB, which include the municipalities mentioned.

6.2.1 State of California

Published in 2009 and updated on 8 June 2017, the State of California Governor's Office of Planning and Research (OPR) Community and Military Compatibility



Planning branch assists cities and counties in addressing military compatibility issues when developing, updating or significantly amending their general plans. These guidelines are the result of the passage of Senate Bill 1468 and Senate Bill 1462, which outline the responsibilities of cities and counties regarding the military in the planning and land use decision-

making process. SB 1462 and SB 1468 identify specific measures that need to be taken by local jurisdictions. The State recommends that cities and counties near military facilities consider such facilities to be part of the community and, therefore, there is a need to address these facilities and local land use impacts within the general plan

Codified in the California Government Code (GC) at sections 65302 and 65560, Senate Bill (SB) 1468 was authored by Senator Pete Knight and signed into law by Governor Gray Davis on September 26, 2002. SB 1468 outlines how cities and counties must consider the impact of development on military readiness activities when preparing or updating their general plan. The intention of the law is to encourage cooperation between military installations and local communities to reduce land use conflicts between civilian development and military readiness activities. SB 1468 identifies specific requirements about when and where local governments must incorporate military readiness activities into the general plan. SB 1468 also required OPR to prepare and publish the California Advisory Handbook for Community and Military Compatibility Planning (OPR Handbook) for local officials, planners and developers to include information about how to reduce land use conflicts between the effects of civilian development and military readiness. SB 1462 amended GC sections 65352, 65404, 65940, and 65944, and was signed by Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger on September 29, 2004. It requires cities and counties to notify the military of certain local planning proposals and development permit applications. The intent of SB 1462 is to create a local notification process which informs the military of certain local land use proposals in an effort to prevent land use conflicts between local communities and military installations and their training activities. The bill requires local governments to: (a) revise their development permit application forms, and (b) notify branches of the military when proposed general plan actions and amendments, and development projects might have an impact on military facilities and operations.

AB1108 amended the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) to ensure military agencies are provided notice of proposed projects within two miles of installations or under training routes or Special Use Airspace.

6.2.2 Riverside County Airport Land Use Commission

The Riverside County Airport Land Use Commission (ALUC) has been assigned the lead responsibility for airport land use compatibility planning around each public-use and military airport in Riverside County. Established in accordance with the California State Aeronautic Act (Public Utilities Code Section 21670 *et seq.*), the Riverside County ALUC is required to prepare



an Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan (ALUCP) for each airport. With regard to military airports, Section 21675(b) states that ALUCs must prepare a compatibility plan and that such plans "shall be consistent with the safety and noise standards in the Air Installations Compatible Use Zones plan prepared for that military airport" (Riverside County ALUC 2014).

In 2014, the *March ARB/Inland Port Authority (IPA) ALUCP* was completed. This ALUCP is primarily based on the *2005 March ARB AICUZ Study*, however the noise contours presented within the 2005 AICUZ were supplemented by more recent contours prepared for both March ARB and March JPA (Riverside County ALUC 2014).

6.2.3 City of Moreno Valley



In 2016, the City of Moreno Valley revised the *2006 Moreno Valley General Plan* which addresses proposed development on land surrounding March ARB. Based on the compatible uses identified within the *2005*

AICUZ, the Moreno Valley General Plan discourages new residential development where noise due to aircraft overflights exceeds 65 CNEL. In addition, noise attenuation is required where necessary to achieve acceptable interior noise levels. The acceptable interior noise is not greater than 45 CNEL for residences and schools and 50 CNEL for libraries, hospitals, places of worship and office uses (Moreno Valley 2006). The City of Moreno Valley is currently updating their General Plan to conform to the *2014 March ARB/IPA ALUCP*.

6.2.4 City of Perris

In 2016, the City of Perris adopted an Airport Overlay Zones (AOZ) (Zoning Code

Chapter 19.51) to comply with the *2014 March ARB/IP ALUCP* boundaries and policies. Presented within the City of Perris Land Use Element, an AOZ ensures that the policies in the *March ARB/IP ALUCP* are adhered to when new development projects are brought before the City of Perris (City of Perris 2016).



The purpose and intent of the AOZ is to:

- Implement the City's General Plan policies to ensure that all land uses within the AOZ are consistent with the State Aeronautics Act, state law, Federal Aviation Administration regulations, and guidance of the California Airport Land Use Planning Handbook;
- Ensure that land uses and development within the AOZ are compatible with the March ARB/IPA ALUCP;
- Prohibit the establishment of new incompatible land uses and further expansion of existing incompatible land uses to avoid or minimize exposure of persons to potential hazards associated with aircraft operations;
- Prohibit development, uses, or any installations or activities that could represent a hazard to aircraft operations; and

• Recognize the unique constraints and considerations that apply to properties potentially affected by aircraft operations by establishing policies and review criteria for land use, development, and properties within the AOZ.

6.2.5 City of Riverside



The Land Use and Urban Design Element of the Riverside General Plan 2025 describes present and planned land uses and their relationship to Riverside's vision and goals. In addition to constituting an action plan for implementation of Riverside's vision, this element complies with all requirements for General Plan Elements set forth in California Law. This also includes two

objectives directly addressing March ARB (City of Riverside 2013):

- Objective 22 Avoid land use/transportation decisions that would adversely impact the long-term viability of the March ARB/IPA, Riverside Municipal and Flabob Airports; and
- Mission Grove Objective 69 Complete buildout of the Mission Grove Specific Plan, encouraging development that can harmoniously co-exist near the March ARB/IPA facility.

The Noise Element of the City's General Plan examines noise sources in the city with a view toward identifying and appraising the potential for noise conflicts and problems, and identifies ways to reduce existing and potential noise impacts. In particular, the Noise Element contains policies and programs to achieve and maintain noise levels compatible with various types of land uses. Although, this element addresses noise which affects the community at large, rather than noise associated with site specific conditions, this element also addresses effective strategies to reduce, eliminate and limit community exposure to loud noise sources. Guidelines put forth by the State of California include requirements for defining projected future noise conditions in the form of noise exposure contours. These contours serve as the basis for developing guidelines for identifying compatible land uses. The following objectives are associated with March ARB/IPA aircraft operations and include:

- Objective 1 Minimize noise levels from point sources throughout the community and, wherever practicable, mitigate the effects of noise to provide a safe and healthful environment;
- Objective 2 Minimize the adverse effects of airport-related noise through proper land use planning; and
- Objective 3 Ensure the viability of March ARB/IPA.

The City of Riverside is currently in the process of updating the Housing Element of their General Plan.

6.3 LAND USE AND ZONING

6.3.1 Existing Land Use and Zoning

Zoning is the legal regulation of property use to protect the health, safety, and welfare of citizens; protect property rights; conserve resources; and avoid incompatible uses. In California, counties and cities enact zoning ordinances to implement respective comprehensive plan objectives. Land use and zoning classifications are generalized to illustrate compatibility across common land use and zoning types.

As mentioned in earlier sections, March ARB is located in the middle of four separate municipalities, three of which share a border with the base. Nearest the base to the south is the city of Perris where land use designations are established by the City of Perris Specific Plan which encourages industrial and commercial land use and no new residential housing. To the east and north of the base, Moreno Valley shares a continuous border with March ARB where industrial and commercial land use is designated and encouraged. Riverside County shares a western border with March ARB where commercial, industrial, open space, and public/quasi-public land use has been designated. The city of Riverside does not border March ARB, however aircraft overflights and associated noise extends into areas of Riverside where commercial land use exists, and into residential areas to a lesser extent relative to noise.

Interstate 215 is a north-south highway and is the primary transportation corridor that runs through Moreno Valley and to the west of March ARB. Interstate 215 links to regional primary and secondary transportation routes within Riverside County. Land use designation along the interstate is primarily industrial and commercial.

Table 6-1 indicates specific land use designations from each municipality and the associated amount of acreage within each noise zone above 65 dB CNEL and within the CZs and APZs associated with March ARB.

Manutatina litera	Land Use		CNEL	(dB)		C7	APZ	APZ
wiunicipanty		65-69	70-74	75-79	80+		Ι	II
City of Moreno Valley	Open Space/Ag	23	5			36	1	
	Commercial						4	11*
	Industrial	34					86	97*
	Residential							
City of Perris	Commercial							2
	PVCC SP	332	76			28	344*	475
	Residential	20	1					7
City of Riverside	Commercial	3						367
	Recreation							4
Riverside County	Commercial	370	4			16	114	30
	Industrial	247	4			17	57	35
	Open Space/Ag							
	Public-Quasi	23					3	
	Undesignated	-	-					

Table 6-1.Municipality Land Use Acreage within High Noise Zones, ClearZones, and Accident Potential Zones (Acres)

-Ag=Agriculture, PVCC SP=Perris Valley Community Center Specific Plan

* does include residences within commercial or industrial land use

-Does not include all land use designations, only those with acreage within 65+ dB CNEL noise zones, CZs, and APZs

-CZs and APZs includes acreage within these zones for both runways

-Does not include acreage where CZ/APZ of one runway overlaps a CZ/APZ of another runway, in this case the more conservative zone acreage is presented.

Sources: Amec Foster Wheeler 2017; City of Moreno Valley 2006; City of Perris 2016; City of Riverside 2013; Riverside County 2014.

Figure 6-1 shows the existing land uses for the area that surrounds March ARB and identifies those areas exposed to CNEL greater than or equal to 60 dB due to aircraft operations at the base. Figure 6-2 depicts zoning classifications associated with the Riverside County ALUC. Existing land use was determined utilizing GIS provided by the local governments (i.e., cities of Moreno Valley, Perris, Riverside, and Riverside County) with mapping of land use layers.

Figures 6-3 and 6-4 present the CZs and APZs associated with the March ARB runways relative to surrounding land uses, both for the cities and the Riverside County ALUC. Currently, March ARB does not own all property within the CZs or APZs associated with either Runway 14/32 or Runway 12/30. All surrounding municipalities have lands that are within March ARB CZs and APZs and, though zoned for compatibility, existing incompatible land use does exist.

6.3.2 Future Land Use and Zoning

As with existing land use and zoning, future land use has been generalized for comparison. The cities of Moreno Valley, Perris, Riverside and Riverside County (specifically the ALUC) have zoned areas surrounding March ARB to ensure long-term land use compatibility with aircraft operations at the base. While existing incompatible land use does exists, through responsible zoning future land use incompatibility can be maintained at a negligible level.

To the south end of Runway 14/32, the City of Perris has zoned an area within APZ I, APZ II, and the 65+ dB CNEL noise zone as "City of Perris Specific Plan." Within this Specific Plan, commercial and industrial land use would be encouraged with no new residences included. It is important that the City of Perris follow through in encouraging only commercial and industrial land use within this area, with a focus on compatibility with density requirements per the SLUCM.



















Legend

March ARB 2018 Noise Contours

Noise Contour Levels (CNEL) 60dB, 65dB, 70dB, 75dB, 80dB

Runways

ZONES

Clear Zone Inner Approach/Depature Zone

High Noise Zone





1 inch = 0.94 miles







APZ I

APZ II

CZ

Clear Zone

High Noise Zone

Inner Approach/Depature Zone

Flight Cooridor Buffer

Other Airport environment

1 inch = 0.94 miles

6.4 COMPATIBILITY

6.4.1 Land Use Analysis

Land use describes how land is developed and managed, and is characterized by the dominant function occurring within an area. To compare land use consistently across jurisdictions, this analysis uses generalized land use classifications illustrating land use compatibility across common land use types. These generalized land use categories do not exactly represent the local community's land use designations, but combine similar uses into the one of the following seven categories:

- **Residential.** All types of residential activity, such as single and multi-family residences and mobile homes, at a density greater than one dwelling unit per acre.
- **Commercial.** Offices, retail stores, restaurants and other types of commercial establishments.
- Industrial. Manufacturing, warehouses and other similar uses.
- **Public/Quasi-Public.** Publicly owned lands and land to which the public has access, including military reservations and training grounds, public buildings, schools, churches, cemeteries, and hospitals.
- **Recreational.** Land areas designated for recreational activity, such as parks, wilderness areas and reservations, conservation areas, and areas designated for trails, hikes, camping, etc.
- **Open/Agriculture/Low Density.** Undeveloped land areas, agricultural areas, grazing lands and areas with residential activity at densities less than or equal to one dwelling unit per acre.
- **Undesignated.** Applies to parcels that had no indicated value or were listed as 'undesignated' in the original datasets.

For the purpose of this analysis, the DoD AICUZ compatibility guidelines (Tables A-1 and A-2 of Appendix A) have been consolidated into the seven generalized land use classifications. Table 6-2 provides generalized compatibility guidelines. Land use compatibility falls into one of four categories: (1) Compatible, (2) Compatible with Restrictions, (3) Not Compatible, and (4) Not Compatible with Exceptions. The conditionally compatible land use may require incorporation of noise attenuation measures into the design and construction of structures and further evaluation to be considered "compatible" and may require density limitations for land in APZs.

Generalized Land	Noise Zone (dB CNEL)						CZ		
Use Category ³	<65	65-69	70-74	75-79	80-84	85+	CZ	AFZI	
Residential	Yes	No ¹	No ¹	No	No	No	No	No	No
Commercial	Yes	Yes	Yes ²	Yes ²	No	No	No	Yes ²	Yes ²
Industrial	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes ²	No	No	Yes ²	Yes ²
Public/Quasi- Public	Yes	Yes ²	Yes ²	Yes ²	No	No	No	No	Yes ²
Recreation	Yes	Yes ²	Yes ²	No	No	No	No	Yes ²	Yes ²
Open/Agriculture/ Low Density	Yes	Yes ²	No	Yes ²	Yes ²				
Undesignated	Yes	No	No	No	No	No	No	No	No

Table 6-2.Generalized Land Use Categories and Noise/Safety
Compatibility

¹ Incompatible with exceptions ² Compatible with restrictions

³ This generalized table demonstrates the land compatibility guidelines. Refer to Appendix A for use in determining land use compatibility.

6.4.2 Existing Land Use Compatibility

Land use compatibility determinations for areas that fall within the boundaries of March ARB CZs and APZs are presented in Figures 6-5 through 6-8 and Table 6-3. Existing land use compatibility for areas exposed to CNEL greater than or equal to 65 dB are presented in Figures 6-9 and 6-10, and Table 6-4. For land use to be considered compatible, it must meet the criteria listed in Table 6-2. Table 6-2 was compared to existing land use plans to determine what type of compatibility was associated with March ARB CZs and APZs and aircraft-generated CNEL.

Table 6-3.Compatible and Not Compatible Land Use within March ARB
Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones (Acres)

Designation	Generalized Land Use Category	CZ	Note	APZ I	Note	APZ II	Note	Total
Not	Residential	-	-	38	(1)(3)	19	(1)(3)	57
Compatible	Commercial	30	-					30
	Industrial	31	-					31
	Public/Quasi- Public	-	-	3	-			3
	Recreation	-	-					-
	Open/Agriculture/ Low Density	36	-					36
	Undesignated	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Compatible	Residential							
	Commercial			271	(2)	646	(2)	917
	Industrial			296	(2)	357	(2)	653
	Public/Quasi- Public					-	-	-
	Recreation			-	-	4	(2)	4
	Open/Agriculture/ Low Density			1	-	-	-	1
	Undesignated							
Subtotals	Not Compatible	97		41		19		157
	Compatible	-		568		1,007		1,575
TOTAL		97		609		1,026		1,732

Notes:

(1) Not Compatible with exceptions, Appendix A, Table A-1.

(2) Compatible with restrictions, Appendix A, Table A-1.

(3) Includes residences within commercial and industrial land use areas.

Sources: Amec Foster Wheeler 2017; City of Moreno Valley 2006; City of Perris 2016; City of Riverside 2013; Riverside County 2014.















March ARB 2018 Noise Contours and Land Use Compatibility Figure 6-9



Legend Not Compatible with Exceptions (refer to Section 6.4.2) March ARB 2018 Noise Contours Noise Contour Levels (CNEL) 60dB, 65dB, 70dB, 75dB, 80dB



1 inch = 1.29 miles

March ARB 2018 Noise Contours and Land Use Compatibility Figure 6-10



City of Perris City of Moreno Valley Not Compatible with Exceptions (refer to Section 6.4.2) March ARB 2018 Noise Contours Noise Contour Levels (CNEL) 60dB, 65dB, 70dB, 75dB, 80dB



1 inch = 0.18 miles

	Generalized Land Use Category	Noise Zone (dB CNEL)								
Designation		65-69	Note	70-74	Note	75-79	Note	80+	Note	Total
Not	Residential	20	(1)	`1	(1)	-	-	-	-	21
Compatible	Commercial							-	-	-
	Industrial									
	Public/Quasi- Public							-	-	-
	Recreation					-	-	-	-	-
	Open/Agriculture/ Low Density									
	Undesignated	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-
Compatible	Residential									
	Commercial (3)	539		42	-	-	-			581
	Industrial (3)	447		42	-	-		-	-	489
	Public/Quasi- Public	23	(2)	-	-	-	-			23
	Recreation	-	-	-	-					-
	Open/Agriculture/ Low Density	23	(2)	5	(2)	-	-	-	-	28
	Undesignated									
Subtotals	Not Compatible	20	(1)	1	(1)	-	-	-	-	21
	Compatible	1,032		89		-		-	-	1,121
Total		1,052		90		-		-		1,142

Table 6-4.Compatible and Not Compatible Land Use within March ARB
2018 CNEL Zones (Acres)

Notes: All contour areas on-base are excluded from the counts.

(1) Not Compatible with exceptions, Appendix A, Table A-2.

(2) Compatible with restrictions, Appendix A, Table A-2.

(3) Includes residences within commercial and industrial land use areas.

Sources: Amec Foster Wheeler 2017; City of Moreno Valley 2006; City of Perris 2016; City of Riverside 2013; Riverside County 2014.

6.4.2.1 Riverside County/Riverside Airport Land Use Commission

Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones

Within Riverside County, approximately 236 acres within APZ I and APZ II were identified as commercial/industrial, thus *Compatible with Restrictions* (i.e., buildings should meet recommended APZ I FAR criteria). This area is within the

Approach/Departure Zones identified by the Riverside ALUC where industrial and commercial land use is permitted, but not in excess of 25 people per gross acre.

<u>Noise</u>

The 65 dB CNEL noise zone (noise levels between 65 dB and 69 dB CNEL) associated with aircraft operations at March ARB extends into Riverside County over areas designated commercial/industrial and public/quasi-public land use, which is *Compatible* and *Compatible with Restrictions* (i.e., noise level reduction measures included in building development), respectively. With regards to ALUC, the 65-69 dB CNEL noise zone associated with March ARB aircraft operations is within the area designated *Inner Approach/Departure Zones* and *High Noise Zones*; both areas are noted to be subject to high noise levels and "within or near the 65 dB CNEL contour."

6.4.2.2 City of Moreno Valley

Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones

Within APZ II, 12.2 acres have been determined *Not Compatible;* this includes 44 residences that do not meet the *Not Compatible with Exceptions* criteria (i.e., 2 du/acre). Within APZ I and APZ II, approximately 186 acres of commercial and industrial land use has been identified as *Compatible with Restrictions*, conditioned on these buildings meeting the recommended FAR criteria described in the SLUCM table (Appendix A, Table A-1).

<u>Noise</u>

The 65-69 dB CNEL noise zone associated with aircraft operations at March ARB that extends into the city of Moreno Valley is compatible with the city's existing land use designation (industrial) in this area.

6.4.2.3 City of Perris

Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones

The CZs and APZs associated with the southern end of Runway 14/32 extend into the city of Perris which has assigned land use via the *City of Perris Specific Plan* which encourages commercial and industrial land use but also includes existing residences. Approximately 11.4 acres within the CZ would be considered *Not Compatible*. An additional 38.1 acres within APZ I would also be considered *Not Compatible* including 37 residences. Within APZ II, 6.6 acres have been determined *Not Compatible* including 38 residences that do not qualify as *Not Compatible with Exceptions* (i.e., 2 du/acre).

Both APZ I and APZ II associated with the south end of Runway 14/32 contain commercial and industrial land use that would be considered *Compatible with Restrictions*, conditioned on buildings meeting the recommended FAR criteria described in the SLUCM table (Appendix A, Table A-1).

<u>Noise</u>

The approximately 20 acres and 18 residences that exist within the 65- 69 dB CNEL noise zone are considered *Not Compatible with Exceptions*. Further, 0.8 acres and 3 residences within the 70 -74 dB CNEL noise zone are considered *Not Compatible with Exceptions*.

6.4.2.4 City of Riverside

Clear Zones and Accident Potential Zones

Within the city of Riverside, an area of approximately 367 acres within APZ II was identified as commercial, thus *Compatible with Restrictions* (i.e., buildings should meet recommended APZ II FAR criteria).

<u>Noise</u>

The 65 dB CNEL noise zone associated with aircraft operations at March ARB that extends into the city of Riverside is compatible with the city's existing land use designation (commercial) in this area.

6.5 AVIGATION EASEMENTS

While the majority of the CZs associated with March ARB runways are within the March ARB boundaries, small areas of the CZs are within the City of Perris and Riverside County jurisdiction, to the south and north, respectively. March ARB has engaged in the establishment of avigation easements with specific land holders to deal with these CZ areas outside of the base boundaries. Currently, March ARB has approximately 39 avigation clearance easements associated with Runway 14/32 CZs that extend beyond the base boundary (March ARB 2016d).

SECTION 7 IMPLEMENTATION

Implementation of the AICUZ Study must be a joint effort between March ARB and the surrounding communities. This AICUZ study provides the best source of information to ensure land use planning decisions made by the local municipalities are compatible with a future installation presence. This chapter discusses the roles of all the partners in the collaborative planning.

7.1 AIR FORCE ROLE

The goal of the Air Force AICUZ program is to minimize the noise and safety concerns on the surrounding communities and to advise these communities on potential impacts from base operations on the safety, welfare, and quality of life of their citizens.

March ARB's AICUZ responsibilities encompass the areas of flight safety, noise abatement, and participation in the land use planning process.

Air Force policy and guidance requires that base leadership periodically review existing practices for flight operations and evaluate these factors in relationship to populated areas and other local situations.

- March ARB should ensure that wherever possible flights be routed over sparsely populated areas as to reduce the exposure of lives and property to a potential accident.
- March ARB should periodically review existing traffic patterns, instrument approaches, weather conditions, and operating practices and evaluate these factors in relationship to populated areas and other local situations. This is done in order to limit, reduce and control the impact of noise from flying operations on surrounding communities.
- March ARB should establish a community forum between the installation and surrounding stakeholders to discuss land use and other issues of concern; these meetings should be held on a quarterly basis.
- March ARB should schedule land use planning meetings to provide a forum for agencies to meet and discuss future developments and to address issues that may surface as a result of new proposals. In an effort to further

facilitate and promote straightforward, consistent two-way discussion and information sharing.

 March ARB should provide copies of AICUZ studies to local, county, tribal, and regional planning departments and zoning administrators to aid in the planning process. Also provide copies of the AICUZ study to appropriate state and federal agencies.

Preparation and presentation of this March ARB AICUZ Study is one phase of continuing Air Force participation in the local planning process. The Air Force recognizes that as the local community updates its land use plans, March ARB must be ready to provide additional input as needed.

7.2 STATE AND REGIONAL ROLES

Community and Military Compatibility Planning, a supplement to California General Plan Guidelines prepared by the State of California Governor's Office of Planning and Research (OPR), assists cities and counties in addressing military compatibility issues when developing, updating or significantly amending their general plans. The State recommends that cities and counties near military facilities consider such facilities to be part of the community and, therefore, there is a need to address these facilities and local land use impacts within the general plan to reduce land use conflicts between civilian development and military readiness activities.

The State of California requires the OPR to prepare and publish an advisory planning handbook for local officials, planners and developers to include information about how to reduce land use conflicts between the effects of civilian development and military readiness. This document, known as the California Advisory Handbook for Community and Military Compatibility Planning (OPR Handbook), was published in 2006 and updated in 2016.

OPR's handbook outlines instruction for collaboration on land use compatibility between local governments and the military particularly with regard to the general plan.

To further aid in the promotion and long-term operation of March ARB, the State should consider the following (Association of Defense Communities 2016):

- Economic Impact/Strategic Planning Study;
- Encroachment Mitigation Planning; and
- Funding of Encroachment Efforts.

7.3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROLE

The role of the local government is to enact planning, zoning, and development principles and practices that are compatible with the base and which protect the base's mission. The residents of the surrounding community have a long history of working with personnel from March ARB. Adoption of the following recommendations during the revision of relevant land use planning or zoning regulations will strengthen this relationship, increase the health and safety of the public, and protect the integrity of the base's flying mission:

- Recommend local government planners consider AICUZ policies and guidelines when developing or revising city comprehensive plans and use AICUZ overlay maps and Air Force Land Use Compatibility Guidelines (see Appendix A) to evaluate existing and future land use proposals.
- Ensure that new development applications or "changed use of property" are submitted to March ARB to afford the opportunity to assess those applications for potential impacts on defense missions. The March ARB Public Affairs Office can provide a land use planning point of contact.
- Recommend zoning ordinances be adopted or modified to reflect the compatible land uses outlined in the AICUZ report, including the creation of military airport overlay zones.
- Recommend local government and county planners establish procedures to consult on land use matters within overlapping extra-territorial jurisdictions near March ARB.
- Recommend local governments review their capital improvement plan, infrastructure investments and development policies to ensure they do not encourage incompatible land use patterns near March ARB, with particular emphasis on utility extension and transportation planning.
- Recommend local governments implement height and obstruction ordinances that reflect current Air Force and Title 14 of the Code of Federal Regulations Part 77 requirements, presented in this study as Hazards to Aircraft Flight Zones.

- Recommend fair disclosure ordinances be enacted to require disclosure to the public for those AICUZ items that directly relate to aircraft operations at March ARB.
- Recommend local governments, where allowed, require real estate disclosure for individuals purchasing property within noise contours or CZs/APZs.
- Enact or modify building/residential codes to ensure that any new construction near March ARB has the recommended noise-level reduction measures incorporated into the design and construction of structures.
- Recommend government planning bodies monitor proposals for tall structures such as wind turbines and communication towers to ensure that new construction does not pose a hazard to navigable airspace around March ARB. Where appropriate coordinate with the FAA on height of structures.
- Recommend that local government land use plans and ordinances reflect AICUZ recommendations for development in CZs/APZs and noise zones.
- Recommend that local governments consult with March ARB on planning and zoning actions that have the potential to affect base operations.
- Invite the Air Force leadership to sit on as an ex officio member on boards, commissions and regional councils addressing long range development and other planning policies.
- Encourage the development of a working group of city, county, and March ARB representatives to discuss land use concerns and major development proposals that could affect aircraft operations.

7.4 COMMUNITY ROLES

Neighboring residents and base personnel have a long-established history of working together for the mutual benefit of the March ARB mission and local community. Adoption of the following recommendations will strengthen this relationship, protect the health and ensure the safety of the public, and help protect the integrity of the base's flying mission:

Real Estate Professionals and Brokers:

Adhere to the State of California Business and Professions Code Section 11010. (13)(A), as it relates to real estate professional responsibility to disclose the location of all existing airports, and all proposed airports

shown on the general plan of any city or county, located within two-statute miles of real property/subdivision.

- Know where the noise zones and CZs/APZs encumber land near the airbase and invite base representative to brokers' meeting to discuss the AICUZ program with the real estate professionals.
- Disclose noise impact to all prospective buyers of properties within areas greater than 60 dB CNEL or within the CZs/APZs.
- Require the Multiple Listing Service to disclose noise zones and CZs/APZs on all listings.

Developers:

- Know where the noise zones and CZs/APZs encumber land near the airbase. Consult with March ARB on proposed developments within the AICUZ.
- Make recommendations regarding existing zoning ordinances and subdivision regulations to support the compatible land uses outlined in this study through implementation of a zoning overlay district based on noise contours and CZs/APZs.

Local Citizens:

- Participate in local forums with the base to learn more about the base's missions.
- Become informed about the AICUZ Program and learn about the program's goals, objectives, and value in protecting the public's health, safety, and welfare.
- When considering property purchases, ask local real estate professionals, city planners, and base representatives about noise and accident potential.

Whereas the base and community are separated by a fence, what the Air Force does affects the community and conversely what the community does, can affect the Air Force mission. Collaborative planning, forging partnerships, open communications, and close relationships help the Air Force and its neighbors achieve their mutual goals.

7.5 JOINT LAND USE STUDY PROGRAM AND NOMINATIONS

To assist local communities to determine what steps they need to take to incorporate the AICUZ land use recommendations into their land use and comprehensive plans and zoning, Congress has authorized DoD to provide planning assistance to local communities to address encroachment issues.

The Office of Economic Adjustment's (OEA) Compatible Use Program provides direct federal assistance to help states and communities work with the Military Services to prevent and mitigate impacts where encroachment of the civilian community impairs the use of military installations. Technical and financial assistance is available through a JLUS to partner with the local military leadership to plan and carry out strategies promoting compatible civilian use adjacent to an installation complex, including related ranges, special use airspace and associated military training routes and military operations areas. Through the communitydriven JLUS planning process, adjacent communities and often the state, in partnership with the installation, identify and evaluate a wide range of both existing and potential future encroachment challenges that may impair the continued operational utility of the military installation complex. The affected communities then develop a strategic action plan to identify specific actions, responsible parties, and a proposed timeline to address the encroachment challenges. The JLUS is a partnership between OEA and the local communities. The military's role in the JLUS process is advisory, providing technical information on noise, safety and installation flight and/or ground training activities.

JLUS nominations are submitted to OEA by the MAJCOM, and communities should consider nominating an installation or range if civilian development has impaired or is likely to impair the continued operational utility of the installation complex.

Given that March ARB CZs and APZs fall within jurisdictions of the surrounding municipalities, and the desire for the municipalities to both protect the operational ability of the base and encourage compatible development, a JLUS update would be a logical next step, and is recommended.
SECTION 8 REFERENCES

- Air Force Civil Engineering Center. 2016. *Tyndall Air Force Base, Air Installations Compatible Use Zones (AICUZ) Study*. March.
- AFH. 2017. Air Force Handbook 32-7084, AICUZ Program Manager's Guide. March.
- AFI. 2015a. Air Force Instruction 32-7063, Air Installations Compatible Use Zones Program. December.
- AFI. 2016a. Air Force Instruction 32-7070, Air Force Noise Program. April.
- AFRC. 2010. Final Environmental Assessment for Proposed Military Construction and Total Force Integration at March Air Reserve Base. July.
- Air Force School of Aerospace Medicine. 2015. *Acoustical Evaluation of Combat Arm Firing Range, Malmstrom AFB, Montana.* Tech Sergeant Jerimiah Jackson. 23 January.
- Amec Foster Wheeler. 2017. Noise contour development for March ARB AICUZ Study utilizing noise models NOISEMAP 7.3 and AEDT 2c and plotting software NMPlot. March.
- ANSI. 1988. Quantities and Procedures for Description and Measurement of Environmental Sound: Part 1, ANSI S12.9. 1988.
- ANSI. 1996. Quantities and Procedures for Description and Measurement of Environmental Sound: Part 4, ANSI S12.9. 1996.
- Association of Defense Communities. 2016. *State of Support, Highlights of State Support for Defense Installations.* June.
- Berglund, B., and T. Lindvall, eds. 1995. *Community Noise*, Jannes Snabbtryck, Stockholm, Sweden.
- California ANG. 2013. Final Environmental Impact Statement F-15 Aircraft Conversion for the 144th Fighter Wing, California Air National Guard, Fresno-Yosemite International Airport, California. March.
- California ANG. 2017. Environmental Assessment for the California Air National Guard 163rd Attack Wing MQ-9 Beddown at March Air Reserve Base, California. March.
- City of Moreno Valley. 2006. *City of Moreno General Plan*. Transmitted to Amec Foster Wheeler via the Internet (http://www.moreno-

valley.ca.us/city_hall/general-plan/06gpfinal/gp/gp-tot.pdf) 19 May 2017. 11 July.

- City of Perris. 2016. *City of Perris General Plan, Land Use Element*. Transmitted to Amec Foster Wheeler via the Internet (<u>http://www.cityofperris.org/city-hall/general-plan/Land_Use_Element.pdf</u>) 18 May 2017. 30 August.
- City of Riverside 2013. *Riverside General Plan 2025*.Transmitted to Amec Foster Wheeler via the Internet (https://www.riversideca.gov/planning/gp2025program/GP/04_Land_ Use_and_Urban_Design_Element.pdf) 17 May 2017. 13 March.
- CBP RAU. 2017. Personal communication via e-mail via Daniel Rockholt, CTR AFRC. MSG/CERR with Agent Mortimer Howard. March.
- Czech, Joseph J. and Plotkin, Kenneth J., 1998. *Wyle Research Report WR 98-13, NMAP 7.0 User's Manual*. Wyle Laboratories, Inc. November.
- DOD. 1978. "Planning in the Noise Environment", Air Force Manual AFM 19-10.
- DOD. 2008. Department of Defense, Unified Facilities Criteria (UFC), Airfield and Heliport Planning and Design, UFC 3-260-01, 17 November.
- DOD. 2015. Department of Defense 4165.57, Air Installations Compatible Use Zones. March 12.
- EPA. 1978. Protective Noise Levels," Office of Noise Abatement and Control. Washington, D.C.
- EPA. 1979. U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Report 550/9-79-100, November.
- Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 2006. Advisory Circular 150/5200-34A. Construction or Establishment of Landfills Near Public Airports.
- FAA. 2017. Aviation Environmental Design Tool, Version 2c, Service Pack 2, Users Guide. March.
- FICAN 1997. Effects of Aviation Noise on Awakenings from Sleep. June.
- Filson, Darren. 2016. *March Air Reserve Base Economic Impact Analysis*. Rose Institute of State and Local Government, Claremont McKenna College. January 14.
- Harris, C.M. 1979. Handbook of Noise Control. McGraw-Hill Book Co.
- Hede, A.J. and R.B. Bullen. 1982. *Community Reaction to Noise from a Suburban Rifle Range*. Journal of Sound and Vibration, Volume 82, pages 39-49.

March ARB. 1998. March Air Reserve Base AICUZ Study.

March ARB. 2005. March Air Reserve Base AICUZ Study. August.

- March ARB. 2010. *The March Field Story*. Transmitted to Amec Foster Wheeler via the Internet (<u>http://www.march.afrc.af.mil/About-Us/Fact-Sheets/Display/Article/167413/the-march-field-story/</u>) on 5 July 2017. 19 July.
- March ARB 2016a. Personal communication via interview with LtCol Scott Heidemann 729 AS, LtCol Stephen Walmsley 336 ARS, LtCol Blake LaMar 163 ATKW, and Major Jeremy Doohen 144 FW. November.
- March ARB 2016b. Personal communication via interview with Lonnie Plummer, Transient Alert. November.
- March ARB 2016c. Personal communication via interview with MSGT Cesar Covarrubias 452 MXG and TSGT Christopher Randles 336 ARS. November.
- March ARB 2016d. Personal communication via e-mail with Malia Rabago, 452 MSG/CERR. 7 November.
- March ARB 2017a. Personal communication via e-mail with Lt Col William Adelmann, 452 AMW/SEF. 26 January.
- March ARB 2017b. Personal communication via e-mail with Daniel Rockholt, CTR AFRC. MSG/CERR. 12May.
- March ARB 2017c. Personal communication via e-mail with Daniel Rockholt, CTR AFRC. MSG/CERR. 16 May.
- March ARB Aero Club. 2016 Personal communication via interview with Robert Peirce. November.
- March JPA. 2016. Personal communication via interview with Dan Fairbanks and Gary Gosiglia. November.
- Military Museum. 2016. March Air Reserve Base. Transmitted to Amec Foster Wheeler via the Internet (<u>http://www.militarymuseum.org/MarchAFB.html</u>) on 10 July 2017. 28 March.
- O'Loughlin, B.J, R.B. Bullen, A.J. Hede, and D.H. Burgess. 1986. Community Reaction to Noise from Williamstown Rifle Range. National Acoustics

Laboratories, Commonwealth Department of Health, Commissioned Report No. 9, Australian Government Publishing Service, Canberra.

- Riverside County. 2015. *Riverside County General Plan*. Transmitted to Amec Foster Wheeler via the Internet (<u>http://planning.rctlma.org/ZoningInformation/GeneralPlan.aspx</u>) 17 May 2017. 15 December.
- Riverside County ALUC. 2014. March Air Reserve Base/Inland Port Airport Land Use Compatibility Plan. November 13.
- State of California. 2013. Business and Professions Code, Division 4. Real Estate, Part 2. Regulations of Transaction, Chapter 1. Subdivided Lands, Article 2. Investigation, Regulation, and Report, 11010. Transmitted to Amec Foster Wheeler via the Internet (http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?law Code=BPC§ionNum=11010) on 7 November 2017. 26 September.
- State of California. 2016a. *California Advisory Handbook for Community and Military Compatibility Planning*. Governor's Office of Planning and Research. October.
- State of California. 2016b. *Military and Community Compatibility Planning 2016 Advisory Handbook Update*. Governor's Office of Planning and Research, Scott Morgan Webinar. September.
- State of California. 2017. Community and Military Compatibility Planning. Supplement to General Plan Guidelines, 2013. Governor's Office of Planning and Research. June.
- Schultz, T.J. 1978. *Synthesis of social surveys on noise annoyance*. J. Acoust. Soc. Am., Vol. 64. August.
- US Census Bureau. 2010. Location Fact Finder. Transmitted to Amec Foster Wheeler via the Internet (https://factfinder.census.gov/faces/tableservices/jsf/pages/productvie w.xhtml?src=bkmk) 28 June 2017.
- Warrenton Training Center. 2005. 2005 Environmental Assessment for Construction and Operation of the Proposed Firing Range Complex at Warrenton Training Center, Station C. 2005.
- Wasmer Consulting. 2017a. BaseOps, Version 7.363. Transmitted to AMEC via the Internet (http://www.wasmerconsulting.com/baseops.htm).

Wasmer Consulting. 2017b. NMPlot, Version 4.969. Transmitted to AMEC via the Internet (<u>http://www.wasmerconsulting.com/nmplot.htm</u>).

Appendix A. Land Use Compatibility Tables

SLUCM		CLEAR ZONE	APZ-I	APZ-II	DENSITY
NO.	LAND USE NAME	Recommendation ¹	Recommendation ¹	Recommendation ¹	Recommendation ¹
10			Residential		
11	Household Units				
11.11	Single units: detached	Ν	Ν	Υ ²	Maximum density of 2 Du/Ac
11.12	Single units: semi-detached	Ν	Ν	Ν	
11.13	Single units: attached row	Ν	Ν	Ν	
11.21	Two units: side- by-side	Ν	Ν	Ν	
11.22	Two units: one above the other	Ν	Ν	Ν	
11.31	Apartments: walk-up	Ν	Ν	Ν	
11.32	Apartment: elevator	N	Ν	N	
12	Group quarters	N	Ν	N	
13	Residential hotels	Ν	Ν	Ν	
14	Mobile home parks or courts	Ν	Ν	Ν	
15	Transient lodgings	N	Ν	N	
16	Other residential	N	Ν	N	
20			Manufacturing ³		
21	Food and kindred products; manufacturing	Ν	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR 0.56 IN APZ II
22	Textile mill products; manufacturing	Ν	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR 0.56 IN APZ II
23	Apparel and other finished products; products made from fabrics, leather and similar materials; manufacturing	N	N	N	
24	Lumber and wood products (except furniture); manufacturing	Ν	Ŷ	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I & 0.56 in APZ II
25	Furniture and fixtures; manufacturing	Ν	Y	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I & 0.56 in APZ II

Table A-1. Land Use Compatibility Recommendations in APZs and CZs

SLUCM	LAND USE NAME	CLEAR ZONE	APZ-I	APZ-II	DENSITY
NO.	Paper and allied	Recommendation	Recommendation	Recommendation	Recommendation
26	products.	N	Y	Y	0.28 in AP71&
20	manufacturing				0.56 in APZ II
	Printing,				Maximum FAR of
27	publishing, and	Ν	Y	Y	0.28 in APZ I &
	allied industries				0.56 in APZ II
	Chemicals and				
28	allied products;	N	N	N	
	Detroloum				
29	refining and	N	N	N	
27	related industries	IN IN	IN IN	IN IN	
30	Tolatoa inadistrios	M	anufacturing ³ (continu	ued)	
	Rubber and				
21	miscellaneous	N	N	N	
51	plastic products;	IN	IN	IN	
	manufacturing				
	Stone, clay, and				Maximum FAR
32	glass products;	N	N	Y	0.56 in APZ II
	Brimary motal				
33	products	N	N	Y	Maximum FAR
00	manufacturing				0.56 in APZ II
	Fabricated metal				
34	products;	N	N	Y	NIAXIMUM FAR
	manufacturing				0.30 III APZ II
	Professional,				
	scientific, and				
	controlling				
35	nhotographic	N	N	N	
	and optical				
	goods; watches				
	and clocks				
	Miscellaneous				Maximum FAR of
39	manufacturing	N	Y	Y	0.28 in APZ I &
40	······································		·		0.56 in APZ II
40	Pailroad rapid	Transportat	ion, communication, a		
	rail transit and				Maximum FAR of
41	street railway	N	Y ⁶	Y	0.28 in APZ I &
	transportation				0.56 in APZ II
	Motor vohiclo				Maximum FAR of
42	transportation	N	Y ⁶	Y	0.28 in APZ I &
	transportation				0.56 in APZ II
40	Aircraft	N	¥6	V	Maximum FAR of
43	transportation	N	Υ ^ο	Ŷ	0.28 IN APZ I &
					Maximum FAR of
44	Marine craft	N	γ6	Y	0.28 in APZ I &
	transportation				0.56 in APZ II
	Highway and				Maximum FAR of
45	street right-of-	Y ⁵	Y ⁶	Y	0.28 in APZ I &
	way				0.56 in APZ II

SLUCM	LAND USE NAME	CLEAR ZONE	APZ-I	APZ-II	DENSITY
NO.		Recommendation	Recommendation	Recommendation	Maximum EAP of
46	Automobile parking	Ν	Y ⁶	Y	0.28 in APZ I & 0.56 in APZ II
47	Communication	Ν	Y ⁶	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I & 0.56 in APZ II
48	Utilities ⁷	Ν	Y ⁶	Y ⁶	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I & 0.56 in APZ II
48.5	Solid waste disposal (landfills, incinerators, etc.)	N	Ν	N	
49	Other transportation, communication, and utilities	Ν	Y6	Y	See Note 6 below
50		1	Trade	L	L
51	Wholesale trade	Ν	Y	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I & .56 in APZ II
52	Retail trade – building materials, hardware and farm equipment	Ν	Y	Y	See Note 8 below
53	Retail trade – including, discount clubs, home improvement stores, electronics superstores, etc.	N	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.16 in APZ II
53	Shopping centers- Neighborhood, Community, Regional, Super- regional ⁹	Ν	Ν	Ν	
54	Retail trade – food	N	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.24 in APZ II
55	Retail trade – automotive, marine craft, aircraft, and accessories	N	γ	γ	Maximum FAR of 0.14 in APZ I & 0.28 in APZ II
56	Retail trade – apparel and accessories	N	N	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ II
57	Retail trade – furniture, home, furnishings and equipment	Ν	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ II

SLUCM	LAND USE NAME	CLEAR ZONE	APZ-I	APZ-II	DENSITY
NO.	Retail trade – eating and	Recommendation	Recommendation	Recommendation	Recommendation
50	drinking establishments	N.	N.	IN	
59	Other retail trade	Ν	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.16 in APZ II
60			Services ¹⁰		
61	Finance, insurance and real estate services	N	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.22 in APZ II
62	Personal services	Ν	Ν	Y	Office uses only. Maximum FAR of 0.22 in APZ II.
62.4	Cemeteries	N	Y ¹¹	Y ¹¹	
63	Business services (credit reporting; mail, stenographic, reproduction; advertising)	Ν	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.22 in APZ II
63.7	Warehousing and storage services ¹²	Ν	Y	Y	Maximum FAR of 1.0 in APZ I; 2.0 in APZ II
64	Repair Services	Ν	Y	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.11 APZ I; 0.22 in APZ II
65	Professional services	N	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.22 in APZ II
65.1	Hospitals, nursing homes	Ν	Ν	Ν	
65.1	Other medical facilities	Ν	Ν	Ν	
66	Contract construction services	Ν	Y	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.11 APZ I; 0.22 in APZ II
67	Government Services	Ν	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.24 in APZ II
68	Educational services	Ν	Ν	Ν	
68.1	Child care services, child development centers, and nurseries	Ν	Ν	Ν	
69	Miscellaneous Services	Ν	Ν	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.22 in APZ II
69.1	Religious activities (including places of worship)	Ν	Ν	Ν	
70		Cultural,	entertainment and re	ecreational	
/1	Cultural activities	N	N V13	N V13	
72	Public assembly	IN N	N N	N	
12	i unic assembly	IN IN	IN	IN	

SLUCM NO.	LAND USE NAME	CLEAR ZONE Recommendation ¹	APZ-I Recommendation ¹	APZ-II Recommendation ¹	DENSITY Recommendation ¹
72.1	Auditoriums, concert halls	Ν	Ν	Ν	
72.11	Outdoor music shells, amphitheaters	Ν	Ν	Ν	
72.2	Outdoor sports arenas, spectator sports	Ν	Ν	Ν	
73	Amusements – fairgrounds, miniature golf, driving ranges; amusement parks, etc.	Ν	Ν	Y ²⁰	
74	Recreational activities (including golf courses, riding stables, water recreation)	Ν	Y ¹³	Y ¹³	Maximum FAR of 0.11 in APZ I; 0.22 in APZ II
75	Resorts and group camps	Ν	Ν	Ν	
76	Parks	Ν	Y ¹³	Y ¹³	Maximum FAR of 0.11 in APZ I; 0.22 in APZ II
79	Other cultural, entertainment and recreation	Ν	Y ¹¹	Y ¹¹	Maximum FAR of 0.11 in APZ I; 0.22 in APZ II
80		Resou	rce production and ex	traction	
81	Agriculture (except live- stock)	Y ⁴	Y ¹⁴	Y ¹⁴	
81.5- 81.7,	Agriculture- Livestock farming, including grazing and feedlots	Ν	Y ¹⁴	Y ¹⁴	
82	Agriculture related activities	N	Y ¹⁵	Y ¹⁵	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I; 0.56 in APZ II, no activity which produces smoke, glare, or involves explosives
83	Forestry activities ¹⁶	Ν	Y	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I; 0.56 in APZ II, no activity which produces smoke, glare, or involves explosives

SLUCM		CLEAR ZONE	APZ-I	APZ-II	DENSITY
NO.	LAND USE NAIVIE	Recommendation ¹	Recommendation ¹	Recommendation ¹	Recommendation ¹
84	Fishing activities ¹⁷	N ¹⁷	Y	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I; 0.56 in APZ II, no activity which produces smoke, glare, or involves explosives
85	Mining activities ¹⁸	Ν	Y ¹⁸	Y ¹⁸	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I; 0.56 in APZ II, no activity which produces smoke, glare, or involves explosives
89	Other resource production or extraction	N	Y	Y	Maximum FAR of 0.28 in APZ I; 0.56 in APZ II, no activity which produces smoke, glare, or involves explosives
90			Other		
91	Undeveloped land	Y	γ	γ	
93	Water areas ¹⁹	N ¹⁹	N ¹⁹	N ¹⁹	

¹ A "Yes" or a "No" designation for compatible land use is to be used only for general comparison. Within each, uses exist where further evaluation may be needed in each category as to whether it is clearly compatible, normally compatible, or not compatible due to the variation of densities of people and structures. In order to assist air installations and local governments, general suggestions as to FARs are provided as a guide to density in some categories. In general, land use restrictions that limit occupants, including employees, of commercial, service, or industrial buildings or structures to 25 an acre in APZ I and 50 an acre in APZ II are considered to be low density. Outside events should normally be limited to assemblies of not more than 25 people an acre in APZ I, and maximum assemblies of 50 people an acre in APZ II. Recommended FARs are calculated using standard parking generation rates for various land uses, vehicle occupancy rates, and desired density in APZ I and II. For APZ I, the formula is FAR = 25 people an acre/ (Average Vehicle Occupancy x Average Parking Rate x (43560/1000)). The formula for APZ II is FAR = 50/ (Average Vehicle Occupancy x Average Parking Rate x (43560/1000)).

² The suggested maximum density for detached single-family housing is two Du/Ac. In a planned unit development (PUD) of single family detached units, where clustered housing development results in large open areas, this density could possibly be increased slightly provided the amount of surface area covered by structures does not exceed 20 percent of the PUD total area. PUD encourages clustered development that leaves large open areas.
³ Other factors to be considered: Labor intensity, structural coverage, explosive characteristics, air-pollution, electronic interference with aircraft, height

of structures, and potential glare to pilots. ⁴ No structures (except airfield lighting and navigational aids necessary for the safe operation of the airfield when there are no other siting options), buildings, or above-ground utility and communications lines should normally be located in Clear Zone areas on or off the air installation. The Clear Zone is subject to the most severe restrictions.

⁵. Roads within the graded portion of the Clear Zone are prohibited. All roads within the Clear Zone are discouraged, but if required, they should not be wider than two lanes and the rights-of-way should be fenced (frangible) and not include sidewalks or bicycle trails. Nothing associated with these roads should violate obstacle clearance criteria.

⁶ No above ground passenger terminals and no above ground power transmission or distribution lines. Prohibited power lines include high-voltage transmission lines and distribution lines that provide power to cities, towns, or regional power for unincorporated areas.

^{7.} Development of renewable energy resources, including solar and geothermal facilities and wind turbines, may impact military operations through hazards to flight or electromagnetic interference. Each new development should to be analyzed for compatibility issues on a case-by-case basis that considers both the proposal and potentially affected mission.

⁸ Within SLUCM Code 52, maximum FARs for lumberyards (SLUCM Code 521) are 0.20 in APZ-1 and 0.40 in APZ-11; the maximum FARs for hardware, paint, and farm equipment stores, (SLUCM Code 525), are 0.12 in APZ I and 0.24 in APZ II.

⁹ A shopping center is an integrated group of commercial establishments that is planned, developed, owned, or managed as a unit. Shopping center types include strip, neighborhood, community, regional, and super-regional facilities anchored by small businesses, a supermarket or drug store, discount retailer, department store, or several department stores, respectively.

¹⁰ Ancillary uses such as meeting places, auditoriums, etc. are not recommended.

¹¹. No chapels or houses of worship are allowed within APZ I or APZ II.

¹². Big box home improvement stores are not included as part of this category.

¹³ Facilities must be low intensity, and provide no playgrounds, etc. Facilities such as club houses, meeting places, auditoriums, large classes, etc., are not recommended.

¹⁴. Activities that attract concentrations of birds creating a hazard to aircraft operations should be excluded.

^{15.} Factors to be considered: labor intensity, structural coverage, explosive characteristics, and air pollution.

¹⁶ Lumber and timber products removed due to establishment, expansion, or maintenance of Clear Zone lands owned in fee will be disposed of in accordance with applicable DoD guidance.

^{17.} Controlled hunting and fishing may be permitted for the purpose of wildlife management.

¹⁸ Surface mining operations that could create retention ponds that may attract waterfowl and present bird/wildlife aircraft strike hazards (BASH), or operations that produce dust or light emissions that could affect pilot vision are not compatible.

¹⁹ Naturally occurring water features (e.g., rivers, lakes, streams, wetlands) are pre-existing, nonconforming land uses. Naturally occurring water features that attract waterfowl present a potential BASH. Actions to expand naturally occurring water features or construction of new water features should not be encouraged. If construction of new features is necessary for storm water retention, such features should be designed so that they do not attract waterfowl.

²⁰. Amusement centers, family entertainment centers or amusement parks designed or operated at a scale that could attract or result in concentrations of people, including employees and visitors, greater than 50 people per acre at any given time are incompatible in APZ II.

LAND USE			SUGGESTED LAND USE COMPATIBILITY			
SLUCM NO.	LAND USE NAME	DNL or CNEL 65-69	DNL or CNEL 70-74	DNL or CNEL 75-79	DNL or CNEL 80-84	DNL or CNEL 85+
10			Residential		-	
11	Household units	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	Ν	N
11.11	Single units: detached	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	Ν	Ν
11.12	Single units: semidetached	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	N	Ν
11.13	Single units: attached row	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	Ν	Ν
11.21	Two units: side-by-side	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	N	N
11.22	Two units: one above the other	N^1	N^1	Ν	Ν	Ν
11.31	Apartments: walk-up	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	N	N
11.32	Apartment: elevator	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	N	N
12	Group quarters	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	Ν	N
13	Residential hotels	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	Ν	Ν
14	Mobile home parks or courts	N	N	Ν	N	N
15	Transient lodgings	N ¹	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	Ν
16	Other residential	N ¹	N ¹	Ν	Ν	N
20		M	anufacturii	ng		
21	Food and kindred products; manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν
22	Textile mill products; manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν
23	Apparel and other finished products; products made from fabrics, leather, and similar materials; manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	N
24	Lumber and wood products (except furniture); manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Υ ³	Y ⁴	Ν
25	Furniture and fixtures; manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	N
26	Paper and allied products; manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	N
27	Printing, publishing, and allied industries	Y	Y ²	Υ ³	Y ⁴	N
28	Chemicals and allied products; manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Υ ³	Y ⁴	Ν
29	Petroleum refining and related industries	Y	Υ ²	Υ ³	Y ⁴	N
30		Manufa	cturing (coi	ntinued)		
31	Rubber and misc. plastic products; manufacturing	Y	Υ ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν

Table A-2. Recommended Land Use Compatibility for Noise Zones

	LAND USE	SUGGESTED LAND USE COMPATIBILITY				
SLUCM NO.	LAND USE NAME	DNL or CNEL 65-69	DNL or CNEL 70-74	DNL or CNEL 75-79	DNL or CNEL 80-84	DNL or CNEL 85+
32	Stone, clay and glass products; manufacturing	Y	Υ ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν
33	Primary metal products; manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν
34	Fabricated metal products; manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν
35	Professional scientific, and controlling instruments; photographic and optical goods; watches and clocks	Y	25	30	N	N
39	Miscellaneous manufacturing	Y	Y ²	Υ ³	Y ⁴	N
40	Trans	portation, o	communica	tion and u	tilities	
41	Railroad, rapid rail transit, and street railway transportation	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν
42	Motor vehicle transportation	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν
43	Aircraft transportation	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	N
44	Marine craft transportation	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν
45	Highway and street right- of-way	Y	Y	Y	Y	Ν
46	Automobile parking	Y	Y	Y	Y	Ν
47	Communication	Y	255	305	Ν	N
48	Utilities	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	N
49	Other transportation, communication and utilities	Y	255	305	N	Ν
50			Trade			
51	Wholesale trade	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	N
52	Retail trade – building materials, hardware and farm equipment	Y	25	30	Y ⁴	Ν
53	Retail trade – including shopping centers, discount clubs, home improvement stores, electronics superstores, etc.	Y	25	30	Ν	Ν
50		Tra	de (continu	ied)		
54	Retail trade – food	Y	25	30	Ν	N
55	Retail trade – automotive, marine craft, aircraft and accessories	Y	25	30	Ν	Ν
56	Retail trade – apparel and accessories	Y	25	30	N	N

LAND USE			SUGGESTED LAND USE COMPATIBILITY			
SLUCM NO.	LAND USE NAME	DNL or CNEL 65-69	DNL or CNEL 70-74	DNL or CNEL 75-79	DNL or CNEL 80-84	DNL or CNEL 85+
57	Retail trade – furniture, home, furnishings and equipment	Y	25	30	Ν	Ν
58	Retail trade – eating and drinking establishments	Y	25	30	Ν	Ν
59	Other retail trade	Y	25	30	Ν	N
60			Services			
61	Finance, insurance and real estate services	Y	25	30	Ν	Ν
62	Personal services	Y	25	30	Ν	Ν
62.4	Cemeteries	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ^{4,11}	Y ^{6,11}
63	Business services	Y	25	30	Ν	Ν
63.7	Warehousing and storage	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	N
64	Repair services	Y	Y ²	Y ³	Y ⁴	Ν
65	Professional services	Y	25	30	Ν	N
65.1	Hospitals, other medical facilities	25	30	N	Ν	Ν
65.16	Nursing homes	N ¹	N ¹	N	Ν	N
66	Contract construction services	Y	25	30	Ν	Ν
67	Government services	Y ¹	25	30	Ν	Ν
68	Educational services	25	30	Ν	Ν	Ν
68.1	Child care services, child development centers, and nurseries	25	30	N	Ν	Ν
69	Miscellaneous Services	Y	25	30	Ν	N
69.1	Religious activities (including places of worship)	Y	25	30	N	N
70	Cult	ural, enter	tainment a	nd recreati	onal	
71	Cultural activities	25	30	N	N	N
71.2	Nature exhibits	Y ¹	Ν	Ν	Ν	N
72	Public assembly	Y	Ν	Ν	Ν	N
72.1	Auditoriums, concert halls	25	30	N	N	Ν
72.11	Outdoor music shells, amphitheaters	N	N	N	Ν	Ν
72.2	Outdoor sports arenas, spectator sports	Y ⁷	Y ⁷	N	Ν	Ν
73	Amusements	Y	Y	N	Ν	N
74	Recreational activities (including golf courses, riding stables, water recreation)	Y	25	30	Ν	Ν
75	Resorts and group camps	Y	25	N	N	N
76	Parks	Y	25	Ν	Ν	N

LAND USE			SUGGESTED LAND USE COMPATIBILITY			
SLUCM NO.	LAND USE NAME	DNL or CNEL 65-69	DNL or CNEL 70-74	DNL or CNEL 75-79	DNL or CNEL 80-84	DNL or CNEL 85+
79	Other cultural, entertainment and recreation	Y	25	N	N	N
80	R	esource pro	oduction ar	nd extractio	on	
81	Agriculture (except live- stock)	Y ⁸	Y ⁹	Y ¹⁰	Y ^{10,11}	Y ^{10,11}
81.5- 81.7	Agriculture-Livestock farming including grazing and feedlots	Y ⁸	Y ⁹	N	N	N
82	Agriculture related activities	Y ⁸	Y ⁹	Y ¹⁰	Y ^{10,11}	Y ^{10,11}
83	Forestry activities	Y ⁸	Y ⁹	Y ¹⁰	Y ^{10,11}	Y ^{10,11}
84	Fishing activities	Y	Y	Y	Y	Υ
85	Mining activities	Y	Y	Y	Y	Υ
89	Other resource production or extraction	Y	Y	Y	Y	Y

^{1.} General

^a Although local conditions regarding the need for housing may require residential use in these zones, residential use is discouraged in DNL 65-69 and strongly discouraged in DNL 70-74. The absence of viable alternative development options should be determined and an evaluation should be conducted locally prior to local approvals indicating that a demonstrated community need for the residential use would not be met if development were prohibited in these zones. Existing residential development is considered as pre-existing, non-conforming land uses.

b. Where the community determines that these uses must be allowed, measures to achieve outdoor to indoor NLR of at least 25 decibels (dB) in DNL 65-69 and 30 dB in DNL 70-74 should be incorporated into building codes and be considered in individual approvals; for transient housing, an NLR of at least 35 dB should be incorporated in DNL 75-79.

C Normal permanent construction can be expected to provide an NLR of 20 dB, thus the reduction requirements are often stated as 5, 10, or 15 dB over standard construction and normally assume mechanical ventilation, upgraded sound transmission class ratings in windows and doors, and closed windows year round. Additional consideration should be given to modifying NLR levels based on peak noise levels or vibrations.

^d. NLR criteria will not eliminate outdoor noise problems. However, building location, site planning, design, and use of berms and barriers can help mitigate outdoor noise exposure particularly from ground level sources. Measures that reduce noise at a site should be used wherever practical in preference to measures that only protect interior spaces.

² Measures to achieve NLR of 25 must be incorporated into the design and construction of portions of these buildings where the public is received, office areas, noise sensitive areas, or where the normal noise level is low.

³. Measures to achieve NLR of 30 must be incorporated into the design and construction of portions of these buildings where the public is received, office areas, noise sensitive areas, or where the normal noise level is low.

⁴. Measures to achieve NLR of 35 must be incorporated into the design and construction of portions of these buildings where the public is received, office areas, noise sensitive areas, or where the normal noise level is low.

^{5.} If project or proposed development is noise sensitive, use indicated NLR; if not, land use is compatible without NLR.

⁶ Buildings are not permitted.

⁷ Land use is compatible provided special sound reinforcement systems are installed.

⁸ Residential buildings require an NLR of 25

9. Residential buildings require an NLR of 30.

^{10.} Residential buildings are not permitted.

¹¹ Land use that involves outdoor activities is not recommended, but if the community allows such activities, hearing protection devices should be worn when noise sources are present. Long-term exposure (multiple hours per day over many years) to high noise levels can cause hearing loss in some unprotected individuals.

Appendix B. Key Terms

Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL) – CNEL is a composite noise metric accounting for the sound energy of all noise events in a 24-hour period. In order to account for increased human sensitivity to noise in the evening and at night, a 5 dB penalty is applied to events that occur between 7 p.m. and 10 p.m. and a 10 dB penalty is applied to events occurring during the acoustical nighttime period (10 p.m. through 7 a.m.).

Decibel (dB) – Decibel is the unit used to measure the intensity of a sound.

Flight Profiles – Flight profiles consist of aircraft conditions (i.e. altitude, speed, power setting, etc.) defined at various locations along each assigned flight track.

Flight Track – The flight track locations represent the various types of arrivals, departures, and closed patterns accomplished at March ARB. The location for each track is representative for the specific track and may vary due to air traffic control, weather, and other reasons (e.g. one pilot may fly the on one side of the depicted track, while another pilot may fly slightly to the other side of the track).

Operation – An aircraft operation is defined as one takeoff or one landing. A complete closed pattern or circuit is counted as two operations because it has a takeoff component and a landing component. A sortie is a single military aircraft flight from the initial takeoff through the termination landing. The minimum number of aircraft operations for one sortie is two operations, one takeoff (departure) and one landing (approach).

APPENDIX I:

SAMPLE ANNUAL REVIEW AND

COORDINATION CERTIFICATION PAGE

U.S. AIR FORCE RESERVE COMMAND MARCH AIR RESERVE BASE CALIFORNIA

INRMP ANNUAL REVIEW AND COORDINATION CERTIFICATION

This letter certifies that the Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan (INRMP) for March Air Reserve Base, dated June 2012, and updated 2021, has undergone the required annual review and any necessary updates have been made in accordance with Air Force Manual 32-7003, Paragraph 3.7. This INRMP provides for management and stewardship of all natural resources present on the Base.

By their signatures below, or an enclosed letter of concurrence, all parties grant their concurrence and acceptance of the following document.

Approving Officials:

MELISSA A. COBURN Brigadier General, USAF Commander, 452d Air Mobility Wing

Mr. David Palmer Chief, Environmental Flight

Mr. Paul Souza U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Regional Director, Region 8

Mr. Charlton Bonham California Department of Fish and Wildlife Director Date

Date

Date

Date

APPENDIX J:

AGENCY CORRESPONDENCE AND DOCUMENTATION

FOR 2021 MARCH ARB INRMP

The following teleconference meetings were held with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) to discuss the revisions to the Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan (INRMP):

Teleconference Meetings with USFWS	Teleconference Meetings with USFWS and CDFW
16 September 2020	10 December 2020
30 September 2020	06 January 2021
28 October 2020	03 February 2021
18 November 2020	03 March 2021

DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE AIR FORCE RESERVE COMMAND



14 December 2020

MEMORANDUM FOR U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service ATTENTION: Scott Sobiech, Field Supervisor Carlsbad Fish and Wildlife Office 2177 Salk Avenue, Suite 250 Carlsbad, CA 92008

FROM: 452 MSG/CEV 610 Meyer Drive, Building 2403 March ARB, CA 92518

SUBJECT: March Air Reserve Base Draft Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan Revision, Riverside County, California

1. The U.S. Air Force Reserve Command and March Air Reserve Base (ARB) have prepared a Draft Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan (INRMP) Revision pursuant to the Sikes Act, as amended (16 U.S.C § 670a et seq.). An Environmental Assessment and Biological Assessment are also being prepared and will be provided to you in the future for review.

2. Changes and updates from the previous March ARB INRMP include utilizing the updated Air Force INRMP template; incorporating natural resource surveys that were conducted in 2019 for burrowing owl, fairy shrimp, and the Stephens' kangaroo rat; and making general updates to the management goals and actions.

3. March ARB respectfully requests your review on the Draft INRMP Revision. We would appreciate receiving your comments within 60 days of receipt of the Draft INRMP Revision. Please address questions or comments to March ARB, Attention: Chris Wagner, Natural Resource Manager, 452 MSG/CEV, 610 Meyer Drive, Building 2403, March ARB, CA 92518; or by email at: christhild.wagner@us.af.mil. Thank you for your assistance.

PALMER.DAVID Digitally signed by PALMER.DAVID.G.1387648808 .G.1387648808 Date: 2020.12.14 08:07:35 -08'00'

DAVID PALMER Chief, Environmental Flight

1 Attachment:
 1. Draft INRMP Revision



DEPARTMENT OF THE AIR FORCE AIR FORCE RESERVE COMMAND

14 December 2020

MEMORANDUM FOR California Department of Fish and Wildlife ATTENTION: Heather Pert CDFW Regional Office, Inland Deserts Region (Region 6) 3602 Inland Empire Blvd, Suite C-220 Ontario, CA 91764

FROM: 452 MSG/CEV 610 Meyer Drive, Building 2403 March ARB, CA 92518

SUBJECT: March Air Reserve Base Draft Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan Revision, Riverside County, California

1. The U.S. Air Force Reserve Command and March Air Reserve Base (ARB) have prepared a Draft Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan (INRMP) Revision pursuant to the Sikes Act, as amended (16 U.S.C § 670a et seq.). An Environmental Assessment is also being prepared and will be provided to you in the future for review.

2. Changes and updates from the previous March ARB INRMP include utilizing the updated Air Force INRMP template; incorporating natural resource surveys that were conducted in 2019 for burrowing owl, fairy shrimp, and Stephens' kangaroo rat; and making general updates to the management goals and actions.

3. March ARB respectfully requests your review on the Draft INRMP Revision. We would appreciate receiving your comments within 60 days of receipt of the Draft INRMP Revision. Please address questions or comments to March ARB, Attention: Chris Wagner, Natural Resource Manager, 452 MSG/CEV, 610 Meyer Drive, Building 2403, March ARB, CA 92518; or by email at: christhild.wagner@us.af.mil. Thank you for your assistance.

PALMER.DAVID Digitally signed by PALMER.DAVID.G.1387648808 .G.1387648808 Date: 2020.12.14 08:10:05 -08'00' DAVID PALMER Chief, Environmental Flight

1 Attachment:
 1. Draft INRMP Revision

APPENDIX K:

NATURAL RESOURCES REFERENCES FOR MARCH ARB

DOCUMENT NAME	DATE	LOCATION
PLANS		
Asbestos Management and Operating Plan	October 2018	452 MSG/CEV
Base Comprehensive Plan - Maps	August 2004	452 MSG/CEV
Bird/Wildlife Aircraft Strike Hazard (BASH) Plan 91-212	September 2017	452 MSG/SE
Draft Bird/Wildlife Aircraft Strike Hazard (BASH) Plan 91-212	April 2019	452 MSG/SE
Environmental Assessment of Implementation of the Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan	TBD	452 MSG/CEV
Hazardous Material Emergency Planning and Response (HAZMAT) Plan	July 2018	452 MSG/CEV
Hazardous Waste Management Plan	October 2019	452 MSG/CEV
Integrated Natural Resources Management Plan	TBD	452 MSG/CEV
Installation Development Plan	July 2019	
Jurisdictional Determination Regarding Presence/Absence of Geographic Wetland Jurisdiction on March Air Reserve Base – Section 404 of the Clean Water Act	February 2011	452 MSG/CEV
Lead-Based Paint Management Plan	August 2002	452 MSG/CEOM
Facility Response Plan	March 2018	452 MSG/CEV
Spill Prevention, Control, and Countermeasure (SPCC) Plan	July 2015	452 MSG/CEV
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan	July 2019	452 MSG/CEV
Wetland Habitat Assessment and Delineation Report	August 2010	452 MSG/CEV
GIS DATA LAYERS		
Bait Traps	2019	452 MSG/CEV
Stephens' Kangaroo Rat	August 2019	452 MSG/CEV
Vernal Wetlands	April 2019	452 MSG/CEV
Invasive Plants	2019	452 MSG/CEV
Wildlife	2019	452 MSG/CEV
Ground Squirrels	2019	452 MSG/CEV
Burrowing Owls	August 2019	452 MSG/CEV
Installation Boundary	January 2019	452 MSG/CEV
Water Features	March 2018	452 MSG/CEV
General (Roads, Facilities, Buildings, etc.)	October 2019	452 MSG/CEV

	Appendix K.	March ARB	Natural Resources	Reference Documents
--	-------------	-----------	--------------------------	----------------------------

DOCUMENT NAME	DATE	LOCATION			
AFIs/AFMANs /FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL REGULATIONS					
AFMAN 32-1053, Integrated Pest Management Program	6 August 2019	452 MSG/CEV			
AFI 32-7061, Environmental Impact Analysis Process	12 March 2003	452 MSG/CEV			
AFMAN 32-7003, Environmental Conservation	20 April 2020	452 MSG/CEV			
AFI 91-212, Bird/Wildlife Aircraft Strike Hazard Program	31 May 2018, as amended 12 June 2020	452 MSG/CEV			
Clean Water Act (CWA); P.L. 95-217, as amended	1977	452 MSG/CEV			
Conservation Programs on Military Reservations; Sikes Act U.S.C. 670 et seq	2004	452 MSG/CEV			
Riverside County Tree Law Ordinance Number 89-8	26 October 2000	452 MSG/CEV			
DoD Instruction 4150.07, DoD Pest Management Program	26 December 2019	452 MSG/CEV			
Endangered Species Act; 16 U.S.C. 1531 et seq.	1973	4482 MSG/CEV			
Executive Order 11514, Protection and Enhancement of Environmental Quality	24 May 1977	452 MSG/CEV			
Executive Order 11988, Floodplains Management	24 May 1977	452 MSG/CEV			
Executive Order 11990, Wetlands Management	24 May 1977	452 MSG/CEV			
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act as amended; 7 U.S.C. 136 et seq.	1996	452 MSG/CEV			
Federal Land Policy and Management Act; 43 U.S.C. 1701	October 2001	452 MSG/CEV			
Federal Noxious Weed Act; 7 U.S.C. 2809 et seq.	28 November 1990	452 MSG/CEV			
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Act; P.L. 96-366, 16 U.S.C. 2901	23 October 1992	452 MSG/CEV			
Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act; 16 U.S.C. 661 et seq.	09 July 1965	452 MSG/CEV			
Migratory Bird Conservation Act; P.L. 89-699, 16 U.S.C. 715	10 November 1986	452 MSG/CEV			
National Environmental Policy Act; 42 U.S.C. 4341	1970	452 MSG/CEV			
Secretary of the Air Force Order 780.1, Wetlands	-	452 MSG/CEV			
Secretary of the Air Force Order 790.1, Floodplains	-	452 MSG/CEV			
Soil and Water Conservation Act; P.L. 95-193, 16 U.S.C. 2001	1977	452 MSG/CEV			
Other					
March ARB Base Layout Map-Tab Number C-1	1994	452 MSG/CEV			
March Air Reserve Base Existing Topography Maps	1995	452 MSG/CEV			
March ARB Conceptual Stormwater Management Plan Map	1995	452 MSG/CEV			

Appendix K. March ARB Natural Resources Reference Documents